
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

JULY 25, 2011 
CONVENING AT 6:30 P.M.  

 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 25, 2011 

Closed Session – 6:30 PM  
Council Boardroom 

Regular Meeting – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

Proposed Resolution to Reconvene in Closed Session as Allowed by Resolution #2011-
07-167 and MCL15.268(a) – City Manager Evaluation 1 

INVOCATION: Pastor Simion Timbuc – Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church 2 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:: 2 

A. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 2 

C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 2 

B. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Carryover Items 2 

C. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 
for US Farathane Corporation – 754 W. Maple 2 

E-2 Public Hearing for the Transfer of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation from Madison Heights to 754 W. Maple 2 



 

 

E-3 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation at 754 W. Maple 3 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 4 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 5 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 5 

H-1  No Postponed Items 5 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: Mayoral Appointments – Local Development 
Finance Authority 5 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 6 

I-3 Request for Closed Session: None Requested 6 

I-4 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – City of Madison Heights 6 

I-5 Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Approval of Early Retirement Incentive 
Program – Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) 7 

I-6 Amendment of Consent Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan Approval (File 
Number SP 186 A) – Proposed Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, 
Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), Section 10, 
Currently Zoned Neighborhood Node M District (Controlled by Consent Judgment) 8 

I-7 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System of the 
Code of the City of Troy 9 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 9 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 9 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 9 



 

 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 9 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 10 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 10 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Concrete 
Pavement Repair Program ................................................................................. 10 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................ 10 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program – 
Fleet Vehicles ..................................................................................................... 10 

J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Nancy Papet, 
Board of Directors, Troy Nature Society 11 

J-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #29 & 30 – Sidwell #88-20-02-
427-016 & -017 11 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 11 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 11 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 12 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 12 

L-1  Council Referrals: No Council Referrals Submitted 12 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 12 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 12 

N. REPORTS 12 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 12 

a) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-May 9, 2011 ................................................... 12 
b) Election Commission-Final-May 26, 2011 .......................................................... 12 



 

 

c) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-June 13, 2011 ................................................ 12 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-June 21, 2011 ................................................... 12 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-June 28, 2011 ................................. 12 
f) Election Commission-Draft-June 29, 2011 ......................................................... 12 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-July 11, 2011 ................................................. 12 
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Draft-July 13, 2011 ............ 12 

N-2 Department Reports: 12 

a) Police Department – 2011 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report ................. 12 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 12 

a) Letter of Appreciation from Kelly Services to Mayor Schilling Regarding the 
Troy Police Department ...................................................................................... 12 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 12 

N-5  Transit Center Status Report 12 

O. STUDY ITEMS 12 

O-1  No Study Items Presented 12 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 12 

P-1  No Closed Session 12 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 13 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 13 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 13 

Monday, August 8, 2011 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 13 
Monday, August 22, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 13 
Monday, August 29, 2011 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 13 
Monday, September 12, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 13 
Monday, September 26, 2011 Regular Meeting .................................................... 13 
Monday, October 3, 2011 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 13 
Monday, October 17, 2011 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 13 
Monday, November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 13 
Monday, November 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 13 
Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 13 
Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 13 
Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 13 



 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 13 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of July 25, 2011 due to                      
 
Yes:       
No:       

Proposed Resolution to Reconvene in Closed Session as Allowed by Resolution #2011-
07-167 and MCL15.268(a) – City Manager Evaluation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
Resolution #2011-07-167 and MCL15.268(a) – City Manager Evaluation. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
The Meeting RECONVENES in City Council Chambers at 7:30 PM. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Simion Timbuc – Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:: 

A. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
 

B. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

C. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

for US Farathane Corporation – 754 W. Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315, Parcel #88-20-28-304-023, in 
accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward 
a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, 
Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
E-2 Public Hearing for the Transfer of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation from Madison Heights to 754 W. Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on July 
25,  2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 754 W 
Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023; and 
 
WHEREAS, An application has been submitted by US Farathane Corporation, to transfer an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property from Madison Heights to 
754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315, for four (4) years; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on July 25, 2011,  
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the transfer of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane 
Corporation, at 754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
TRANSFER of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane 
Corporation, at 754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315 shall not substantially impede the 
operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE 
TRANSFER of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial 
soundness of the City of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application to 
transfer an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, Inc., 
at 754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023, for personal property for a 
term of four (4) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
E-3 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation at 754 W. Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on July 
25,  2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 754 W. 
Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by US Farathane Corporation, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-
5315, for three (3) years; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on July 25, 2011,  
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane 
Corporation, at 754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane 
Corporation, at 754 W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315 shall not substantially impede the 
operation of the City of Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial 
soundness of the City of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, Inc., at 754 
W. Maple, Troy, MI 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023, for personal property for a term of 
three (3) years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation, and the payment of the fees in 
accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 
 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: Mayoral Appointments – Local Development 

Finance Authority 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments 

 

 
Resolution to RECONSIDER the Mayoral Appointments to the Local Development 
Finance Authority 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-02- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS the following resolution: 

 
Resolution #2011-07-157 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following 
persons to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5-Regular) – Staggered 4 Year Term 

 
Maureen Donohue Krauss Oakland County Designee 

 
John Sharp Term Expires 06/30/2014 

  
Nick Vitale Term Expires 06/30/2015 

  
Robin Beltramini Term Expires 06/30/2015 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Board or Committee as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5-Regular) – Staggered 4 Year Term 
 
Maureen Donohue Krauss Oakland County Designee 
 
John Szerlag City Manager 
  
John Sharp  Michael Kidder (reappointed) Term Expires 06/30/2015 
  
Nick Vitale Term Expires 06/30/2015 
  
Robin Beltramini Term Expires 06/30/2014 
  
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session: None Requested 
 
I-4 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – City of Madison Heights 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for 
the City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to the City of Madison Heights; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
Acting City Clerk to execute the Agreement; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Approval of Early Retirement Incentive 

Program – Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, A tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and TCSA for 
the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013; and  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012; 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, One Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) member will meet the 
eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of June 30, 2011; and three Troy 
Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) members are within five years of meeting the 
eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of June 30, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the Troy 
Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) members who will be eligible to retire, or are 
within five years of eligibility, on or before June 30, 2011, provided that the program is 
economically beneficial to the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program may be offered 
during a minimum 45-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of June 30, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 
SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Departments’ budgets, and funding 
for the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE OBTAINED from the funds contained in 
the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 
retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than November 15, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 
Plan. Contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or Defined 
Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a two-year collective bargaining agreement between the City 
of Troy and TCSA for the period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013 as presented is hereby 
RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement; 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Amendment of Consent Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan Approval (File 

Number SP 186 A) – Proposed Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, 
Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), Section 10, 
Currently Zoned Neighborhood Node M District (Controlled by Consent Judgment) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the revised Preliminary Site Plan 
for the addition of a drive-through, including other site improvements, located at the northeast 
corner of Long Lake and Livernois, Section 10, as indicated on a Site Plan prepared by NORR, 
LLC.  This revised site plan revises and updates the exhibits to the Consent Judgment in the 
Sunset Plaza Limited Partnership v. City of Troy lawsuit, Case Number 70-68045-CZ, and 
reflects the parties’ agreement as to the proposed development on the property.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council also APPROVES a Stipulation and 
Fifth Amendment to the Consent Judgment in the Sunset Plaza Limited Partnership v. City of 
Troy Lawsuit, Case Number 70-68045-CZ, to facilitate the development as proposed, and 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document which incorporates the 
updated and revised Preliminary Site Plan, after all other necessary parties have executed it.  A 
copy of the executed document shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-7 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System of the Code 

of the City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 10 of the 
Troy City Code (Employee Retirement System), a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of July 11, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Concrete Pavement 

Repair Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Concrete 
Pavement Repair Program FY 2011/12 with an option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) 
year periods to the low total bidder, Dilisio Contracting Inc. of Clinton Township, MI, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened July 7, 2011, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting based on the scope of work, and the ability 
to add additional locations up to, but not exceeding amounts budgeted; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative 

Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase six (6) 2011 
Ford Crown Victorias from Signature Ford of Owosso, MI, through a Macomb County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an estimated total cost of $129,822.00. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program – Fleet 

Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase two (2) 2012 
Dodge Chargers from Bill Snethkamp - Dodge of Lansing, MI, through the State of Michigan 
MiDEAL Program for an estimated total cost of $45,104.00. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Nancy Papet, 
Board of Directors, Troy Nature Society 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Troy Nature Society, 
asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the 
purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City Management. 
 
J-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #29 & 30 – Sidwell #88-20-02-
427-016 & -017 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-07-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes between Ramarao V. 
and Ramadevi Cherukuri, Lakshmi Gontina, and Vemula Panduranga and Chandralekha P. 
Rao, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-016 and -017, and the City of Troy, for 
the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard is APPROVED in the amount of $21,700, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Engineering Department is hereby AUTHORIZED to 
expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit in the 
amount of $700 from Ramarao V. and Ramadevi Cherukuri, Lakshmi Gontina, and Vemula 
Panduranga and Chandralekha P. Rao, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-016 
and -017 is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
Warranty Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland 
County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: No Council Referrals Submitted 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-May 9, 2011 
b) Election Commission-Final-May 26, 2011 
c) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-June 13, 2011 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-June 21, 2011 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-June 28, 2011 
f) Election Commission-Draft-June 29, 2011 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-July 11, 2011  
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Draft-July 13, 2011 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Police Department – 2011 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Kelly Services to Mayor Schilling Regarding the Troy Police 

Department 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  Transit Center Status Report 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA July 25, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, August 8, 2011 .................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 22, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 29, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 12, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 26, 2011 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 3, 2011 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 17, 2011 .............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 14, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 28, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 5, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 19, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:          July 25, 2011                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

for US Farathane Corporation – 754 W. Maple 
 
 
Background: 
 
  US Farathane Corporation is consolidating some of its operation in Troy, at 754 W. Maple.  
They have an existing Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) in Madison Heights that 
they wish to transfer to Troy.  It involves an initial investment of $715,173.00.  This IFEC expires 
on December 31, 2015. 
 
   Additionally, they wish to apply for a new IFEC in Troy.  They will be spending $1,022,820 for 
new machinery and equipment for the consolidation.  They have a 7.5 year lease on the 754 
W. Maple building, and will be creating 8 new jobs to go along with the 74 jobs they will be 
transferring here.  Under Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173, they would qualify for a 
three (3) year abatement. 
 
  In order to qualify for either the transfer or new abatement, an Industrial Development 
District (IDD) must first be established at the site.  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  In this case, the financial considerations for each exemption shall be considered separately.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The site meets all legal and Policy Resolution criteria necessary for establishing an IDD. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-
08-173.  Additionally, the following Council Outputs/Outcomes are met; 
   

BittnerA
Text Box
E-01



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
H.      Recruit and retain new businesses that enhance the community and that meet the 
goals of the City’s Master Plan, as well as the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study 
 
U.     Utilize available economic development tools and partnerships in order to compete 
for  quality businesses 
 

Options: 
 
  City Council may establish the IDD (and approve the tax abatements).  Or, City Council 
may choose to not establish a district at this site.  In which case, the Council must then deny 
any tax abatement for a district not established. 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\US Farathane\Memo IDD 07.25.11 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 25, 2011  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD), the granting of 

an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and the transfer of an existing 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) from Madison Heights, for US 

Farathane Corporation, at the following location: 

 

88-20-28-304-023   754 W Maple, Troy, MI.  48084-5315 

T2N, R11E, Section 28 part of SW 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, Deputy Clerk 
       Acting City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
  

OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
Attn:  DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
US FARATHANE CORPORATION 
Attn:  RICHARD L KNAPPE 
2700 HIGH MEADOW 
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326 

 
CITY OF MADISON HEIGHTS 
Attn: MARILYN HALEY  CITY CLERK 
300 W THIRTEEN MILE 
MADISON HEIGHTS  MI 48071 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



E-01   Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 754 W. Maple 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011- 
Moved by 
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development 
District (IDD) for property known as 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315, Parcel #88-
20-28-304-023, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. 
Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:          July 25, 2011                   
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the transfer of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation from Madison Heights to 754 W. Maple 
 
 
Background: 
 
  US Farathane is consolidating some of its operations in Troy.  They have an existing Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) in Madison Heights that they wish to transfer to Troy, at 
754 W. Maple.  The IFEC will have four (4) more years to run starting with the 2012 year. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  The initial amount of the investment was $715,173.00.  Over the four (4) years remaining on 
the abatement, the estimated total taxes would be $5,583.44, of which $1,786.02 would be 
City Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $2,791.72, of which $893.01  
would be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-
08-173.  Additionally, the following Council Outputs/Outcomes are met; 
   

H.      Recruit and retain new businesses that enhance the community and that meet the 
goals of the City’s Master Plan, as well as the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
E-02



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
U.     Utilize available economic development tools and partnerships in order to compete 
for quality businesses 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
transfer of the tax abatement.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may approve transfer of the tax abatement.  Or, City Council may choose not 
to grant the transfer.  In which case, the Petitioner may appeal that decision to the State Tax 
Commission (STC). 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\US Farathane\Memo IFEC Transfer 07.25.11 













licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box





licarila
Text Box







Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
US Farathane Corp.









City of Troy – Assessing Department 
 
 
Industrial Development District (IDD) – Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC)  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
US Farathane Corporation 
88-20-28-304-023 
754 W Maple 
Troy, MI.  48084-5315 
 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 28  
PART OF SW 1/4  
BEG AT PT DIST  
S 89-02-00 E 1336.66 FT &  
S 88-39-00 E 1027.55 FT  
FROM SW SEC COR,  
TH N 01-02-20 E 800 FT,  
TH S 88-39-00 E 229.98 FT,  
TH S 01-02-20 W 800 FT,  
TH N 88-39-00 W 229.98 FT  
TO BEG EXC  
S 60 FT TAKEN FOR RD  
3.91 A 
12/16/86 FR 019 



Market Value 715,173 257,462 84,963 26,338 7,638
50% of Value 357,587 128,731 42,481 13,169 3,819

Year 2012 2013 2014 2015
Depreciation 0.3600 0.3300 0.3100 0.2900

Taxable Value 128,731 42,481 13,169 3,819

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $75.95 $25.06 $7.77 $2.25
County 4.64610 $598.10 $197.37 $61.19 $17.74

Zoo 0.10000 $12.87 $4.25 $1.32 $0.38
Int Schools 3.36900 $433.70 $143.12 $44.37 $12.87
Comm Coll 1.58440 $203.96 $67.31 $20.87 $6.05

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.70000 $605.04 $199.66 $61.90 $17.95

Hold Harmless 5.03810 $648.56 $214.02 $66.35 $19.24
Admin 0.14990 $19.30 $6.37 $1.97 $0.57

City 9.49000 $1,221.66 $403.15 $124.98 $36.24
Total 29.66750 $3,819.13 $1,260.31 $390.70 $113.30

Total Taxes 4 Yrs $5,583.44
Total City Taxes 4 Yrs $1,786.02

50% Total Taxes 4 Yrs $2,791.72
50% Total City Taxes 4 yrs $893.01
2% Total City 4 Yrs $17.86

* No fee on transfer
 

*Application Fee (2% total city)
Net Total City Taxes Abated

Net Total Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
US Farathane IFEC Transfer from Madison Heights

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application



June 15, 2011

To: State Tax Commission
P. O. Box 30471
Lansing, MI  48909-7971

From: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC

  This affidavit attests to the fact that the City of Troy has charged
NO application fee for the transfer of an active Industrial Facilities
Exemption Certificate from Madison Heights to Troy in the name of
US Farathane Corporation.
 

  Further, no other fee or concession has been charged or accepted
in regards to this application, or consideration thereof.

Signed:  Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor Dated:



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between US Farathane Corporation, (“Company”) 
and the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of 
Public Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), US Farathane Corporation, understands that through 
its investment of $715,173.00 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 4 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2015, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2015, US Farathane Corporation, will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) US Farathane Corporation, agrees to remain within the City 

of Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
US Farathane Corporation, further understands that if it 
chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  US Farathane Corporation, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  US Farathane Corporation, agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 

 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  M. Aileen Bittner                         (date) 

  Acting City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 25, 2011  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD), the granting of 

an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and the transfer of an existing 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) from Madison Heights, for US 

Farathane Corporation, at the following location: 

 

88-20-28-304-023   754 W Maple, Troy, MI.  48084-5315 

T2N, R11E, Section 28 part of SW 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, Deputy Clerk 
       Acting City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
  

OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
Attn:  DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
US FARATHANE CORPORATION 
Attn:  RICHARD L KNAPPE 
2700 HIGH MEADOW 
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326 

 
CITY OF MADISON HEIGHTS 
Attn: MARILYN HALEY  CITY CLERK 
300 W THIRTEEN MILE 
MADISON HEIGHTS  MI 48071 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



                                      E-02 
 
E - 02  Request for Consideration to Transfer an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate   

(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation from Madison Heights to 754 W Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2011- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on July 25,  
2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 754 W Maple, 
Troy, MI. 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by US Farathane Corporation, to transfer an 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property from Madison Heights to 
754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315, for four (4) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on July 25, 2011,  
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the transfer of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, 
at 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
TRANSFER of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, 
at 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE TRANSFER of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of 
Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application to 
transfer an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, Inc., 
at 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023, for personal property for a 
term of four (4) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:          July 25, 2011                   
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation at 754 W. Maple 
 
 
Background: 
 
  US Farathane is consolidating some of its operations in Troy.  Along with the transfer of an 
existing Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) from Madison Heights to Troy, they are 
applying for a new IFEC at 754 W. Maple.  The IFEC application qualifies for three (3) years 
abatement under Council’s Policy Resolution #2010-08-173. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  The initial amount of the investment is $1,022,820.00.  Over the three (3) year life of the 
abatement, the estimated total taxes would be $30,641.70, of which $9,801.63 would be City 
Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $15,320.85, of which 
$4,900.81 would be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-
08-173.  Additionally, the following Council Outputs/Outcomes are met; 
   

H.      Recruit and retain new businesses that enhance the community and that meet the 
goals of the City’s Master Plan, as well as the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study 

BittnerA
Text Box
E-03



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
U.     Utilize available economic development tools and partnerships in order to compete 
for quality businesses 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the 
tax abatement.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may approve the tax abatement.  Or, City Council may choose not to grant 
the abatement.  In which case, the Petitioner may appeal that decision to the State Tax 
Commission (STC). 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\US Farathane\Memo IFEC NEW 07.25.11 









licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box





licarila
Text Box







Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.

LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
US Farathane Corp.







City of Troy – Assessing Department 
 
 
Industrial Development District (IDD) – Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC)  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
US Farathane Corporation 
88-20-28-304-023 
754 W Maple 
Troy, MI.  48084-5315 
 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 28  
PART OF SW 1/4  
BEG AT PT DIST  
S 89-02-00 E 1336.66 FT &  
S 88-39-00 E 1027.55 FT  
FROM SW SEC COR,  
TH N 01-02-20 E 800 FT,  
TH S 88-39-00 E 229.98 FT,  
TH S 01-02-20 W 800 FT,  
TH N 88-39-00 W 229.98 FT  
TO BEG EXC  
S 60 FT TAKEN FOR RD  
3.91 A 
12/16/86 FR 019 



Market Value 1,022,820 910,310 691,835 463,530
50% of Value 511,410 455,155 345,918 231,765

Year 2012 2013 2014
Depreciation 0.8900 0.7600 0.6700

Taxable Value 455,155 345,918 231,765

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $268.54 $204.09 $136.74
County 4.64610 $2,114.70 $1,607.17 $1,076.80

Zoo 0.10000 $45.52 $34.59 $23.18
Int Schools 3.36900 $1,533.42 $1,165.40 $780.82
Comm Coll 1.58440 $721.15 $548.07 $367.21

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.70000 $2,139.23 $1,625.81 $1,089.29

Hold Harmless 5.03810 $2,293.12 $1,742.77 $1,167.65
Admin 0.14990 $68.23 $51.85 $34.74

City 9.49000 $4,319.42 $3,282.76 $2,199.45
Total 29.66750 $13,503.31 $10,262.51 $6,875.88

Total Taxes 3 Yrs $30,641.70
Total City Taxes 3 Yrs $9,801.63

50% Total Taxes 3 Yrs $15,320.85
50% Total City Taxes 3 yrs $4,900.81
2% Total City 3 Yrs $98.02

 
 

Application Fee (2% total city)
Net Total City Taxes Abated
Net Total Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
US Farathane IFEC - NEW

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
Resolution #2010-08-173 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the tax base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) encouraging 
expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities, and (g) encouraging attractive, 
viable building sites and (h) enhancing our economic development tools to attract and 
retain businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, 
empowers cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax 
abatements for eligible properties established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the 
following minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 
No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be 
granted until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement at a minimum must be revenue 
neutral to the City of Troy.  

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant 

is responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely 
payment of property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 

years; and 
 

5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more 
than 10 jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, 
and/or owns the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying 
property for a minimum term of 5 years, as long as two of the three criteria are 
satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of 
the following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the 
increase in the number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, 
and similarly the increase in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease 
conditions on the real property will increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
implementation of an application fee equal to 2% of the estimated personal property 
taxes abated under the terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of 
processing the application, whichever is less, and the City of Troy will not charge or 
collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



June 15, 2011

To: State Tax Commission
P. O. Box 30471
Lansing, MI  48909-7971

From: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC

  This affidavit attests to the fact that the City of Troy has charged
an application fee in the amount of $98.02, equal to 2% of the
estimated abated City taxes for the life of the exemption
for US Farathane Corporation, 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315
 

  Further, no other fee or concession has been charged or accepted
in regards to this application, or consideration thereof.

Signed:  Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor Dated:



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between US Farathane Corporation, (“Company”) 
and the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of 
Public Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), US Farathane Corporation, understands that through 
its investment of $1,022,820.00 and its qualification for Michigan 
Economic Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its 
investment of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually 
investing in and benefiting from this economic development project, and 
furthermore, agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 3 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2016, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2013, US Farathane Corporation, will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) US Farathane Corporation, agrees to remain within the City 

of Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
US Farathane Corporation, further understands that if it 
chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  US Farathane Corporation, understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  US Farathane Corporation, agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 

 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  M. Aileen Bittner                         (date) 

  Acting City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 25, 2011  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD), the granting of 

an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and the transfer of an existing 

Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) from Madison Heights, for US 

Farathane Corporation, at the following location: 

 

88-20-28-304-023   754 W Maple, Troy, MI.  48084-5315 

T2N, R11E, Section 28 part of SW 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, Deputy Clerk 
       Acting City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
  

OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
Attn:  DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
US FARATHANE CORPORATION 
Attn:  RICHARD L KNAPPE 
2700 HIGH MEADOW 
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326 

 
CITY OF MADISON HEIGHTS 
Attn: MARILYN HALEY  CITY CLERK 
300 W THIRTEEN MILE 
MADISON HEIGHTS  MI 48071 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



                                      E-03 
 
E - 03  Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate   

(IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation - 754 W Maple 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2011- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on July 25,  
2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 754 W Maple, 
Troy, MI. 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by US Farathane Corporation, for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-
5315, for three (3) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on July 25, 2011,  
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, 
at 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, 
at 754 W Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of 
Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application to for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation, Inc., at 754 W 
Maple, Troy, MI. 48084-5315, Parcel # 88-20-28-304-023, for personal property for a term of 
three (3) years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation, and the payment of the fees in 
accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and US Farathane Corporation, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
July 19, 2011 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance 
 
Subject: Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – City of Madison Heights 
 
 
Background 

Attached is a copy of the proposed Interlocal Service Agreement between the City of Troy and 
the City of Madison Heights where the City of Troy will provide fleet maintenance services to 
the City of Madison Heights vehicles and equipment on an as needed basis.  The Agreement 
was presented to the Madison Heights City Council and approved unanimously. 

 
Recommendation 

City management and the Fleet Division of Public Works recommend entering into the Interlocal 
Service Agreement with the City of Madison Heights for fleet maintenance services. 

 
Fund Availability  

The Agreement generates outside revenue and maximizes the use of our facility and staffing.  
At this time no additional staffing is required.  There is capacity in the facility to take on the 
additional work.  The hourly repair cost charged to Madison Heights is the fully burdened shop 
rate charged by the Internal Service Fund.  The Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance reviews 
the fully burdened shop rates on an annual basis, and will adjust the Agreement as needed. 

 
 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality  
 Legal counsel has reviewed the contract as to form and legality.  
 
 
__________________________  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Regular Business - MadisonHgtsAgreementMemo07.11.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
I-04























 

PES\AGENDA ITEMS\ PS11M.051 – Ratification of Contract and Early Retirement Incentive Prog.-TCSA 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  July 20, 2011 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 

SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Approval of Early 
  Retirement Incentive Program – Troy Communications Supervisors   
 Association (TCSA)  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends approval of the tentative agreement between the City of 
Troy and the Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA) for a 2011-2013 
collective bargaining agreement.  This is the first contract for this bargaining unit which was 
certified in April, 2009.  City management further supports and recommends approval to 
offer the Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) to TCSA employees. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On July 18, 2011, the Troy Communications Supervisors Association ratified a tentative 
agreement for a two year contract between the City of Troy and TCSA.  This agreement is 
effective July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013.  A copy of this agreement is attached. 
 
As directed by City Council, this agreement achieves a 10% savings calculated on payroll 
costs that include base pay, pension, workers compensation and FICA.  This tentative 
agreement incorporates a 4.5% savings in health insurance costs, the equivalent of a 
2.5% wage decrease in the form of reduced paid leave time, 5.3% savings in the elimination 
of shift prep time, and additional savings in training officer premium pay and reduced 
overtime costs.  Thus, a 13.28% savings is achieved. 
 
The last component of the tentative agreement is the offering of an Early Retirement 
Incentive Program (ERIP).  A description of the program recommended by city  
Agenda Item-Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Approval of Early Retirement Incentive 
Program - TCSA  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

bittnera
Text Box
I-05



 

PES\AGENDA ITEMS\ PS11M.051 – Ratification of Contract Early Retirement Incentive Prog.-TCSA 

 

Page Two 
 
 
administration and the actuarial valuation are attached.  The proposed program is consistent 
with the ERIP previously offered to the AFSCME, MAP, TCOA, TFSOA, TPOA and 
Classified and Exempt employees.  Two options would be offered:  a cash incentive of 
$1,000 per complete year of credited retirement service with the City of Troy, or the option 
to convert from a Defined Contribution Pension Plan to a Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  
This Early Retirement Incentive Program must be cost neutral.  The DC to DB Program 
would be funded directly from the members’ DC accounts.  The cost associated with the 
cash incentive program will be covered by the department.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PES/ 
 
Attachments 
 
cc: Gary Mayer, Police Chief 



 
 

P R O P O S E D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 
 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

and 
 

TROY COMMUNICATIONS SUPERVISORS ASSOCIATION 
 

July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2013 



 
 

 
INDEX 

 
Section           Page 
 
5 Agency Shop ................................................................................................................ 1 
1 Agreement .................................................................................................................... 1 
12 Arbitration .................................................................................................................... 7 
9 Association Business ................................................................................................... 5 
6 Association Dues ......................................................................................................... 2 
19 Call-In Time ............................................................................................................... 13 
31 Clothing and Cleaning Allowance ............................................................................. 19 
18 Court Time ................................................................................................................. 13 
27 Disability Insurance ................................................................................................... 17 
13 Discipline ..................................................................................................................... 8 
39 Duration of Agreement .............................................................................................. 24 
28 Duty-Connected Disability ........................................................................................ 17 
40 Emergency Manager .................................................................................................. 24 
36 Exit Interviews ........................................................................................................... 23 
22 Funeral Leave............................................................................................................. 14 
11 Grievance: General Conditions .................................................................................... 6 
10 Grievance Procedure .................................................................................................... 5 
25 Holidays ..................................................................................................................... 15 
30 Hospitalization and Medical Insurance ...................................................................... 18 
38 Judicial Review .......................................................................................................... 23 
15 Layoffs and Recall ..................................................................................................... 10 
24 Leave Without Pay ..................................................................................................... 14 
29 Life Insurance ............................................................................................................ 18 
32 Longevity ................................................................................................................... 19 
7 Management Rights ..................................................................................................... 4 
23 Military Leave ............................................................................................................ 14 
8 No Strike ...................................................................................................................... 4 
4 Non-Discrimination ..................................................................................................... 1 
17 Overtime .................................................................................................................... 11 
21 Personal Business Time ............................................................................................. 14 
35 Promotions ................................................................................................................. 22 
2 Purpose and Intent ........................................................................................................ 1 
3 Recognition .................................................................................................................. 1 
33 Retirement .................................................................................................................. 20 
14 Seniority ....................................................................................................................... 9 
20 Sick Leave .................................................................................................................. 13 
26 Vacation ..................................................................................................................... 15 
34 Wages ......................................................................................................................... 22 
37 Waiver of Negotiations .............................................................................................. 23 
16 Work Schedule ........................................................................................................... 11 
 



1 
 

1.  AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is hereby entered into July ____, 2011, by and between the City of 
Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the City or the Employer), 
and the Troy Communications Supervisor’s Association existing under the laws of the State of 
Michigan (hereinafter referred to as the Association). 
 

2.  PURPOSE AND INTENT 
 

 The general purpose of this Agreement is to set forth terms with respect to rates of pay, 
wages, hours of employment, and other conditions of employment, and to promote orderly and 
peaceful labor relations for the mutual interest of the City of Troy in its capacity as an Employer, 
its employees, the Association, and the citizens of the City of Troy, Michigan. 
 

3.  RECOGNITION 
 

 A. Pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable provisions of Act 366 of the 
Public Acts of 1947, as amended by Act 379 of the Public Acts of 1965, as amended, the 
Employer does hereby recognize the Association and the Command Officer’s Association of 
Michigan (hereinafter referred to as the Union) as the exclusive bargaining representatives for all 
employees with the rank of Communications Supervisor and Communications Manager for the 
purposes of collective bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, and 
other conditions of employment for the term of this Agreement. 
 
 B. Employees shall have the right to join the Association to engage in lawful 
concerted activities for the purpose of collective negotiations or bargaining or other mutual aid 
and protection. 
 

4.  NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 

 The Employer and the Association agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
applied equally to all employees without discrimination as to sex, marital status, race, color, 
creed, national origin, religious, or political affiliations. 
 

5.  AGENCY SHOP 
 

 A. Employees covered by this Agreement at the time it becomes effective and who 
are members of the Association at that time shall be required, as a condition of continued 
employment, to continue membership in the Association for the duration of this Agreement. 
 
 B. Employees covered by this Agreement who are not members at the time it 
becomes effective, but who join after the effective date of this Agreement shall, as a condition of 
continued employment, continue membership in the Association for the duration of this 
Agreement. 
 



2 
 

 C. Employees hired, rehired, reinstated, transferred, or promoted into the Police 
Department with the rank of Communications Supervisor or Communications Manager after the 
effective date of this Agreement shall be required, as a condition of continued employment, to 
become members of the Association for the duration of this Agreement or pay the required 
service fee on or before the 30th day following their appointment. 
 
 D. An employee who shall tender an initiation fee and the periodic dues or service 
fee uniformly required as a condition of requiring or retaining membership shall be deemed to 
meet the conditions of this section. 
 
 E. Employees shall be deemed to be members of the Association within the meaning 
of this section if they are not more than thirty (30) days in arrears in payment of their 
membership dues or fees. 
 
 F. The Association shall protect, indemnify, and save harmless the Employer from 
any and all claims, demands, suits, and other forms of liability which arise from action taken by 
the Employer for the purpose of complying with the language of Article 5 of this Agreement, 
including reasonable attorney fees. 
 

6.  ASSOCIATION DUES 
 

 A. Employees may tender the initiation fee and membership dues by signing the 
Authorization for Check-Off of Dues Form. 
 

Check-Off Forms:  During the life of this Agreement in accordance with terms of 
the form of Authorization for Check-Off Dues hereinafter set forth, and to the 
extent the laws of the State of Michigan permit, the Employer agrees to deduct 
Association membership dues levied in accordance with the Constitution and By-
Laws of the Association from the pay of each employee who executes or has 
executed the following Authorization for Payroll Deduction. 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR PAYROLL DEDUCTION 
 

By:               
 (Please Print) Last Name   First Name   Middle Name 
 
Classification:        SSN:     
 
To:               

Employer 
Effective       , I hereby request and authorize you to 
deduct from my earnings each pay period a sufficient amount to provide for the regular payment 
of dues. 
 
              
      Signature of Employee   Date 



3 
 

 
 B. Deductions shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement.  The Employer shall have no responsibility for the collection of initiation fees, 
membership dues, special assessments, or any other deductions not in accordance with this 
provision.  Any dispute arising as to an employee’s compliance with this section, shall be 
reviewed by the designated representative of the Association and, if not resolved, may be 
decided at Step 2 of the grievance procedure. 
 
 C. A properly executed copy of such Authorization for Check-Off Dues Form for 
each employee for whom Association membership dues are to be deducted hereunder shall be 
delivered to the Employer before any payroll deductions are made.  Deductions shall be made 
thereafter only under Authorization for Check-Off of Dues Forms which have been properly 
executed and are in effect.  Any Authorization for Check-Off of Dues Form which is incomplete 
or in error will be returned to the Association Treasurer by the Employer, forthwith. 
 
 D. Check-Off deductions under all properly executed Authorization for Check-Off of 
Dues Forms shall become effective at the time said form is tendered to the Employer and shall be 
deducted from each pay period thereafter. 
 
 E. The Association will provide to the Employer any additional Authorization for 
Check-Off of Dues Forms under which Association membership dues are to be deducted. 
 
 F. In cases where a deduction is made that duplicates a payment that an Employee 
has already made to the Association, or where a deduction is not in conformity with the 
provisions of the Association Constitution and By-Laws, refunds to the employee will be made 
by the Association. 
 
 G. Deductions for any calendar month shall be remitted to the designated financial 
officer of the Association by the 5th day of the month following the month in which the 
deductions are made.  The Employer shall furnish the designated financial officer of the 
Association with a list of employees for whom the Association has submitted signed 
Authorization for Check-Off of Dues Forms and for whom deductions have been made.  
Subsequent lists will be furnished by the Employer when changes are made in the list of 
employees. 
 
 H. Any dispute between the Association and the Employer which may arise as to 
whether or not an employee properly executed or properly revoked an Authorization for Check-
Off of Dues Form shall be reviewed with the employee by a representative of the Association 
and a designated representative of the Employer.  Should this review not dispose of the matter, 
the dispute may be referred to the grievance procedure whose decision shall be final and binding 
on the employee, the Association, and the Employer.  Until this matter is resolved, any dues 
deductions shall be held in an escrow account. 
 
 I. The Employer shall not be liable to the Association by reason of the requirements 
of this agreement for the remittance or payment of any sum other than that constituting actual 
deductions made from wages earned by employees.  The Association will protect and save 



4 
 

harmless the Employer from any and all claims, demands, suits, and other forms of liabilities by 
reason of action taken for the purposes of complying with Section 6 of this Agreement. 
 
  

7.  MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 
 

 A. It is recognized that the management of the City of Troy, the control of its 
properties, and the maintenance of order and efficiency is the sole responsibility of the 
Employer.  Other rights and responsibilities belonging solely to the Employer are hereby 
recognized, prominent among which, but by no means wholly inclusive, are the right to decide 
the number and location of work stations, work to be performed within the unit, amount of 
supervision necessary, the training necessary and those employees who are to receive said 
training, the equipment used, methods and schedules of work, the selection, processing, 
designing, engineering, and control of all equipment and materials; also, to take whatever actions 
necessary to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), but that the Employer will 
meet with the Association President and staff representative to discuss the issues prior to taking 
such actions. 
 
 B. It is further recognized that it is the responsibility of the Employer, for the 
selection and direction of the working forces, including the right to hire, suspend or discharge for 
just cause, assign, promote, or transfer, to determine the amount of overtime to be worked, to 
relieve employees from duty because of lack of work or other legitimate reasons. 
 
 

8.  NO STRIKE 
 

 A. Under no circumstances will the Association cause, authorize, or permit its 
members to cause, nor allow any member of the bargaining unit to take part in the strike, sit-
down, stand-in, slow down, or curtailment of work, restriction of production or interference with 
the operation of the Employer during the term of this Agreement or during any period of time 
when negotiations are in progress for the continuance or renewal of this Agreement.  In the event 
of a work stoppage, curtailment, or interference thereof, it is recognized that the Employer shall 
not be required to negotiate on the merits of the dispute until all such stoppages or curtailments 
have ceased. 
 
 B. In the event of a work stoppage or other curtailment, the Association shall 
immediately instruct the involved employee in writing, with a copy to the Employer, that there 
conduct is in violation of the contract, and that they may be disciplined and further shall instruct 
all persons to immediately cease the offending conduct. 
 
 C. The Employer shall have the right to discipline any employee who instigates, 
participates in, and/or gives leadership to any activity herein prohibited. 
 
 D. The Association will not officially support strikes of any other labor organization 
by picketing or demonstrating publicly on or adjacent to City property. 
 



5 
 

9.  ASSOCIATION BUSINESS 
 

 A. The Association shall be represented in all labor negotiations by a committee 
composed of the President of the Association and three other officers selected by the 
Association. 
 
 B. Of the four (4) employees above, any two (2) on-duty members shall be permitted 
to attend contract negotiation sessions without loss of pay or benefits.  The remaining members 
shall not be paid by the City. 
 
 C. An on-duty member who is a steward or the President of the Association shall be 
permitted to represent employees at grievance meetings with the Employer or at arbitration 
hearings without loss of pay or benefits. 
 
 D. The Employer shall provide each member of the Association with an electronic 
copy of this Agreement. 
 
 E. The President or other officer of the Association shall be given time off not to 
exceed 20 hours per fiscal year to attend to matters concerning Association business.  Requests 
for such time off shall be submitted to the Chief of Police no later than 48 hours in advance of 
the time requested and shall be approved provided that no additional personnel expense is 
incurred by the City. 
 
 F. The Employer agrees to furnish a bulletin board for the posting of notices of 
Association meetings and social activities.  Other material may be posted if approved by the 
Chief of Police. 
 

10.  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 

 A. A grievance shall be defined as a dispute between the Employer and the 
Association as to the meaning or application of the specific provisions of this Agreement.  Such 
grievance shall state which section(s) of the contract is alleged to have been violated, and how it 
affects the member(s) of the Association who feel aggrieved. 
 
 B. It is encouraged that any dispute be resolved as soon as possible in an informal 
manner.  The employee shall first discuss the matter with his immediate supervisor.  If an 
employee’s immediate supervisor is not available, the matter shall be discussed with the next 
ranking command officer within that division and, if he is not available, then with the next 
ranking command officer outside the officer’s division.  If so desired by the employee, his 
steward may participate in these discussions.  If the matter is not resolved, it shall be reduced to 
writing by the employee and submitted as a grievance. 
 
 C. A written grievance shall be signed by the grievant, submitted to the Chief of 
Police through the chain of command, with copies directed to the Human Resources Director and 
the President of the Association.  The grievance shall contain a specific statement of facts as to 
its cause, the section of the contract which the employee believes was violated, and the remedy 



6 
 

sought by the grievant.  Any grievance not submitted within five working days of the date the 
Grievant knew or should have known of the event giving rise to the grievance shall be 
automatically closed. 
 
 D. Procedure: 
 

Step 1.  Within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving the grievance, the Police 
Chief shall hold a meeting between the employee, his steward, and the Police 
Chief or his designated representative.  The Police Chief or his representative 
shall give his written decision within seven (7) calendar days after the meeting. 
 
Step 2.  Grievances not settled at Step 1 may be filed with the Human Resources 
Director (or any other designated representative directed by the City Manager) 
within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the Step 1 answer.  Within 
fourteen (14) calendar days, the Human Resources Director shall hold a meeting 
between the President of the Association, the Steward or Association Officer of 
the employee’s shift, the grievant, and the Police Chief or his designated 
representative.  The Human Resources Director shall given his written decision 
concerning the grievance within thirty (30) calendar days after the meeting.  The 
Union may grant up to two, thirty (30) calendar day extensions to answer the 
grievance if requested by the Human Resources Director.  If the written decision 
is not given within thirty (30) calendar days after the meeting, or within the time 
limits of the extensions if requested and granted, the grievance will be awarded in 
favor of the grievant. 
 
Step 3.  Grievances not settled at Step 2 may be filed within twenty (20) calendar 
days to arbitration with a copy forwarded to the Human Resources Director. 
 

11.  GRIEVANCE: GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

 
 A. Grievances involving suspension or discharge may be entered directly at Step 2 of 
the grievance procedure. 
 
 B. Any grievance meeting not scheduled as required or any grievance not answered 
within the prescribed time limit at each step may be appealed to the next step by the Association. 
 
 C. Any grievance not appealed from one of the steps of the grievance procedure 
within the prescribed time limits shall be considered settled on the basis of the Employer’s last 
answer. 
 
 D. Any agreement reached between the Association and the Employer is binding on 
all employees affected, and cannot be changed by or for any individual. 
 
 E. An on-duty grievant in a grievance may attend the grievance meeting without loss 
of pay or benefits. 



7 
 

 
 F. No economic costs shall have retroactivity extending back more than 90 days 
from receipt of the grievance by the Chief of the Department or his designated representative. 
 

12.  ARBITRATION 
 

 A. If a grievance is appealed to arbitration, the parties involved shall jointly select an 
arbitrator or, if necessary, ask for an arbitrator from the American Arbitration Association 
(AAA) or the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS).  Any grievance subject to 
arbitration under this contract shall be pursuant to the voluntary labor arbitration rules of the 
American Arbitration Association.   
 

B. The arbitrator shall rule only on the contractual provisions set forth herein and 
shall have no authority to expand, modify, or alter any provisions of this Agreement or the 
written rules or regulations of the department, and his decision shall be limited to the application 
or interpretation of the above and to the specific issue presented to him. 
 
 C. The fees and approved expenses of an arbitrator will be paid by the parties 
equally. 
 
 D. After a grievance has been referred to arbitration, the matter may not be 
withdrawn by either party except by mutual consent. 
 
 E. A grievance submitted to arbitration which is withdrawn shall be withdrawn with 
prejudice.  
 
 F. An arbitrator’s decision in any grievance shall not require a retroactive wage 
adjustment in any related matter. 
 
 G. All grievance settlements or arbitration awards for back wages and fringe benefits 
shall be limited to the amount of wages and fringe benefits which the employee would otherwise 
have earned, less compensation earned during the disciplinary period questioned and which 
would not have been otherwise earned, and in no case shall awards have retroactivity extending 
back more than 90 days from the date the grievance was received by the Chief of the department. 
 
 H. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the Association, its 
members, the employee or employees involved, and the Employer, provided that such decision is 
within the arbitrator’s authority. 
 
 I. In cases where either of the parties believe the arbitrator’s decision exceeded his 
authority and jurisdiction, the arbitrator’s decision may be challenged in Oakland County Circuit 
Court and be subject to further appellate action. 
 
 J. The challenge of an arbitrator’s decision may be instituted by the City or the 
Association, but not by an employee(s) acting on his own behalf.  
 



8 
 

13.  DISCIPLINE 
 

 A. No employee shall be disciplined except for just cause. 
 
 B. Discipline shall consist of the following levels: 
 

1. Oral Reprimand: An official warning to an employee that his conduct or 
performance is unacceptable, a written notation of which shall be 
maintained in the employee’s departmental file. 

 
2. Written Reprimand: A written record of an employee’s unsatisfactory 

conduct or performance which is included in the employee’s official 
personnel file in the Human Resources Department.  The employee shall 
have the option of submitting a statement of his position concerning the 
reprimand. 

 
3. Loss of Time Off: The elimination of some or all of an employee’s 

available or prospective time off. 
 
4. Suspension: An employee is not permitted to report for work for a specific 

period of time and does not receive pay for the time in question. 
 
5. Discharge: An employee is involuntarily separated from employment with 

the City of Troy. 
 

 C. The listing of these disciplinary levels does not preclude the starting of 
disciplinary action at a higher level when the seriousness of the incident warrants such discipline. 
 
 D. If, upon review, the discipline is reversed, the employee involved shall receive 
full pay and benefits for the time involved and all records of the incident shall be removed from 
his personnel file. 
 
 E. Should an employee be required to give a verbal or written account of his actions 
which may result in the employee receiving disciplinary action, the employee may, at his option, 
have a steward present while making such a statement.   
 
 F. The President of the Association shall be notified in writing within 24 hours of the 
disciplining in excess of an oral reprimand of any member of the Association. 
 
 G. All cases of discipline may be processed as a grievance. 
 
 H. An employee’s disciplinary records may be reviewed and removed in the 
following manner: 
 

1. The written record of an oral reprimand shall be removed from the 
employee’s departmental file when the employee has successfully 



9 
 

corrected the matter in question and has received no other discipline as 
defined in this section within a two (2) year period following the 
reprimand.  Such removal must be requested in writing by the affected 
employee who shall state the reason for the request.  If, upon review, a 
disciplinary record is not removed, a future date shall be established to 
again review this matter. 

 
2. A written reprimand shall be removed from the employee’s official 

personnel file at the written request of the employee if the employee has 
received no other discipline as defined in this section within a period of 
three years from the date of the reprimand.  If an employee has received 
discipline within the three-year period, he may request the review and 
removal of the disciplinary record by the Chief of Police.  The employee’s 
request must be in writing and must indicate the reasons for the request.  
If, upon review, a disciplinary record is not removed, a future date shall be 
established to again review the matter. 

 
3. The decision not to remove an oral or written disciplinary record shall not 

be a grievable matter. 
 
4. Records of all other discipline including and more severe than a 

suspension shall be retained permanently in the employee’s official 
personnel file. 

 
 I. At the conclusion of any investigation conducted, the employee who is the subject 
of the complaint shall be notified in writing of the outcome of that investigation.   
 

14.  SENIORITY 
 

 A. Bargaining unit seniority of members of the Association shall commence when 
the employee completes his/her probationary period, and shall be retroactive to initial date of 
employment as a member of this bargaining unit. 
 
 B. Such seniority shall not be applicable for purposes of pension benefits, which 
benefits shall be based on credited service as defined in the Employee’s Retirement System, 
Chapter 10 of the Troy City Code, nor for fringe benefits, which shall be determined by the 
service date (continuous full-time service as of employee’s date of hire less unpaid leaves of 
absence). 
 
 C. An employee shall lose seniority and shall no longer be considered an employee 
for the following reasons: 
 
  1. He resigns or retires; 
 
  2. He is discharged and not reinstated; 
 



10 
 

3. He is absent for three (3) consecutive work days, including the original 
date of absence, without notifying the Employer (exceptions to this may 
be made by the Employer); 

 
4. He fails to return to work upon expiration of a leave of absence; 
 
5. He gives a false reason to obtain a leave; 
 
6. He fails to return to work within fourteen calendar days after being 

recalled from a layoff; 
 
7. He is laid off for a continuous period equal to his length of seniority or 

five (5) years, whichever is lesser; 
 
8. He separates from employment upon settlement covering total disability; 
 
9. He does not work for a period of two (2) years provided the employee is 

unable to perform the essential duties of the position with reasonable 
accommodation. 

 
 F. During an employee’s probationary period, the employer retains the right to 
discharge a new hire employee or return a promoted employee to a previous position held by the 
employee within the City without regard to any other provision of this Agreement.  The 
discharge, termination or return to previous position of any employee during the probationary 
period shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure. 

 
 

15.  LAYOFFS AND RECALL 
 

 A. Layoff means an indefinite reduction of the working forces.  Whenever possible, 
employees being laid off shall be given at least fourteen (14) calendar days notice of layoff.  The 
Employer shall furnish the union bargaining unit a copy of such layoff notice. 
 
 B. Employees who are displaced by elimination of their job shall displace an 
employee with lesser bargaining unit seniority. 
 
 C. Layoff shall be by bargaining unit seniority within classification.  The following 
procedures shall govern the layoff of employees: 
 

1. Seasonal, temporary, part-time and probationary employees (in that order), 
performing Bargaining Unit work, shall be laid off first within a 
classification before the layoff of any Bargaining Unit members within the 
classification. 

 
2. Thereafter, seniority employees shall be removed from that position in 

reverse order of seniority. 



11 
 

 
 D. When the working force is increased after a layoff, the employees shall be called 
back in reverse order of layoff.  Employees shall be returned to the same pay step that they were 
on at the time of the layoff. 
 
 E. Notice of recall shall be sent by certified mail return receipt requested to the 
employee at the last address on file with the employer.  If an employee fails to appear or call the 
Human Resources Department within five (5) calendar days of the mailing date of notice, he 
shall be considered as having quit.  If the employee calls the Human Resources Department 
within five (5) calendar days of the notice, he shall report to work as directed, but be allowed up 
to fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the phone call or personal appearance to report to 
work provided reasons satisfactory to the Employer are given for the requested extension of 
time.  It is the employee’s responsibility to notify the Human Resources Department of any 
change of address. 
 

16.  WORK SCHEDULE 
 

 A. Employees who are on probation shall be assigned work schedules at the 
discretion of the Chief. 
 
 B. Available work schedules, including changes resulting from the completion of 
probation, shall be by seniority choice among the affected employees. 
 
 C. If an employee is unable to report to work at his established starting time, he shall 
notify the on duty Communications Supervisor at least one hour prior to the time his shift is 
scheduled to start, unless mitigating circumstances make such notification impossible.  Failure to 
provide such notification may, at the option of the City, result in loss of pay for that day. 
 
 D. Whenever possible, employees may take a one-half (1/2) hour lunch break and 
two additional fifteen-minute breaks per shift. 
 
 E. Ten (10) days notice will be provided an employee for any change in hours, leave 
days, work days, or duties.  This will not apply in emergencies as determined by the Chief of the 
department. 
 
 F. Shift selection shall be made consistent with the department schedule of shift 
changes. 
 

 
17.  OVERTIME 

 
 A. Overtime is defined as authorized work (1) in excess of forty (40) hours in a work 
week or (2) time is excess of an employee’s current regular shift duty time, and may be assigned 
at the discretion of the City. 
 



12 
 

 B. A Communications Supervisor will be paid for such overtime at the rate of one 
and one-half (1 ½) times his regular hourly rate.  At the employee’s option, payment for 
overtime may be declined in favor of banking compensatory time at the rate of one and one-half 
(1 ½) hours compensatory time for every one hour of earned overtime.  Each employee’s bank of 
compensatory time shall not exceed thirty (30) hours per quarter.  All unused accumulated 
compensatory time shall be paid to the employee not later than the second pay after June 30, 
September 30, December 31 and March 31, at the employee’s current straight time rate as of 
those dates.  The granting of compensatory time off shall not be granted if the absence creates 
additional personnel costs to the employer, and is subject to regulation as detailed in Police 
Department rules, policies and procedures. 
 
 C. The Communications Manager will be compensated for overtime by time off at 
straight time rates. Compensatory time may accrue to a maximum of 120 hours.  Compensatory 
time off in excess of one work day as normally scheduled must be submitted in writing and 
approved by the Chief of Police or Division Captain. 
 
 D. For the purposes of scheduling overtime, employees will be considered to be on a 
leave day until they have worked ten (10) hours overtime. 
 
 E. Procedure for offering overtime to Communications Supervisors: 
 

a. Overtime shall first be offered in order of seniority to Communications 
Supervisors who are scheduled for a leave day but who are regularly 
assigned to the shift on which the overtime is to be worked. 

 
b. If such employees decline the overtime, the overtime shall be offered in 

order of seniority to other Communications Supervisors who are 
scheduled for a leave day. 

 
c. If such employees decline the overtime, the overtime shall be offered in 

seniority order to those employees scheduled to work on the day such 
overtime occurs but whose work schedule for such day does not conflict 
with the time during which the overtime is to be worked. 

 
d. If such employees decline the overtime, the junior employee who is 

scheduled for leave day shall work the overtime. 
 

 F. If an insufficient number of employees are available for an overtime situation, the 
least senior employee may be ordered in for duty. 
 
 G. There shall be no duplication of overtime for the same hours, and employees shall 
not be paid twice for the same hours recorded as worked. 
 
 H. When an employee is called in to work at other than his scheduled working time, 
he shall be paid a minimum of three (3) hours at the appropriate premium rate.  This minimum 
shall not be applicable if the overtime is contiguous with the regular working hours. 



13 
 

 
  

18.  COURT TIME 
 
 Time spent in court appearances originating from the performance of the employee’s 
regular duties shall be counted as normal duty time and shall be so used in the computation of 
overtime.  A minimum of three (3) hours will be paid for such off-duty court appearances 
provided that such minimum of three (3) hours shall not be applicable if the court time is 
contiguous to the employee’s scheduled duty hours. 
 

19.  CALL-IN TIME 
 

 When an employee is called in at other than his normal scheduled work shift, he shall be 
paid a minimum of three (3) hours at the appropriate premium rate, provided that such minimum 
shall not be applicable if the call-in is contiguous with the employee’s scheduled duty hours. 
 

20.  SICK LEAVE 
 

 A. Employees shall accrue 8 hours of sick leave for each month of service with the 
City beginning with the first full calendar month of service. 
 
 B. Sick leave will not be approved before it has been accrued. 
 
 C. Unused sick leave may accrue to a maximum of 288 hours. 
 
 D. An employee who is off of work for three consecutive days because of illness or 
injury or exhibits a pattern of sick leave abuse may be required to submit a physician’s certificate 
prior to his being allowed to return to work indicating the nature of the illness or injury, the 
employee’s capability of returning to work, and the degree to which he may perform his regular 
duties.  In order to determine the employee’s fitness to return to duty, the Employer shall have 
the right to send the employee for medical examination(s) before permitting his return to work. 
 
 E. Sick leave is to be utilized only in the case of genuine illness or injury which 
prevents the employee from performing his duties.  In addition, the employee may use sick leave 
when a member of his immediate family who permanently resides with the employee is ill or 
injured which creates a genuine necessity for the employee to be off work to care for that family 
member.  Unauthorized or improper use of sick leave by any employee shall be cause for 
disciplinary action. 
 
 F. On or before the 10th of December, employees with accumulated sick leave in 
excess of the 288 hours maximum as of the last pay period of October of that year shall receive a 
bonus of unused sick leave which is over the maximum at the rate of 100%, and the accumulated 
sick leave shall be reduced to the maximum of 288 hours. 
 
 G. Upon the Normal Retirement, Early Retirement, Disability Retirement, or death 
of an employee, unused sick leave credits will be paid to the employee or his beneficiary to a 



14 
 

maximum of 288 hours.  Payment for unused sick leave credits at retirement shall be excluded 
from the computation of Final Average Compensation (FAC) for pension purposes. 
 
 

21.  PERSONAL BUSINESS TIME 
 

 A. Upon completion of new hire probation, an employee shall be granted up to 30 
hours of personal business time in any one calendar year with the prior approval of his 
supervisor. 
 
 B. Personal business time may be taken in conjunction with holiday leave and/or 
vacation leave. 
 

22.  FUNERAL LEAVE 
 

 Employees shall be allowed up to 40 hours time off for a death in the employee’s or the 
employee’s spouse’s immediate family for attending to funeral arrangements and attending the 
funeral.  The immediate family shall consist of the employee’s spouse, son, daughter, step-son, 
or step-daughter, and the employee’s or the employee’s spouse’s grandparents, mother, father, 
sister, brother, step-parent, step-child, step-sibling, or grandchildren. 
 

23.  MILITARY LEAVE 
 

 Any employee who has completed his probation period and leaves the Employer’s 
service for compulsory military duty shall be placed on military leave without pay.  Such leave 
shall extend through a date of 90 days after his release from the military service.  An employee 
returning from military leave shall be entitled to restoration to his former position, provided that: 
(1) he makes application within 90 days after his release from duty, (2) his release shall be under 
conditions other than dishonorable, and (3) he is physically and mentally capable of performing 
the duties of the position involved.  An employee who leaves for military duty may elect to be 
paid for accrued vacation time due him, or have such credits reinstated upon return to the 
department.  An employee returning from Military Leave shall have unused sick leave credits 
restored to him. 

 
24.  LEAVE WITHOUT PAY 

 
 The City Manager may grant an employee leave without pay for a period not to exceed 
one year when it is in the interest of the City to do so.  The employee’s request for such leave 
shall be considered when he has shown by his record to be of more than average value to the 
City, and where it is desirable to retain the employee even at some sacrifice.  Employees on an 
unpaid leave of absence shall not be entitled to any fringe benefits during the period of the leave 
(unless required pursuant to COBRA).  Seniority shall not continue to accrue during an unpaid 
leave of absence. 
 

 



15 
 

25.  HOLIDAYS 
 

 A. On January 1, each employee shall be allotted 110 hours of future holiday leave. 
 
 B. Designated holidays shall be: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence 
Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Friday following Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve Day, Christmas 
Day, Easter and New Year’s Eve Day.  The designated holiday shall apply to one specific 
calendar day for each of the designated holidays. 
 
 C. Any Communication Supervisor working on a designated holiday shall receive 
one and one-half times his regular hourly rate for all hours worked that day.  All overtime hours 
worked on a designated holiday shall be paid at the rate of two times his regular hourly rate. 
 
 D. Unused holiday leave as of December 31 of each year shall be paid to the officer 
on a straight time basis by means of direct deposit. 
 
 E. The Communication Manager may work a designated holiday, if it is his/her 
scheduled work day, upon providing seven days’ written notice to the Division Captain.  An 
individual working under this section will be paid straight time only. 
 
 F. Upon death or retirement, unused holiday leave accrued that year will be paid at 
the rate of 100% of the unused hours. 
 
 

26.  VACATION 
 

 A. All employees shall qualify for vacation leaves on January 1 of each calendar year 
according to the following schedule: 
 

1. For all months worked in the previous calendar year prior to the third 
service date with the City, an employee shall accumulate vacation leave at 
the rate of 6 2/3 hours for each month worked. 

 
2. For all months worked in the previous calendar year beyond the third and 

prior to the eighth service date with the City, an employee shall 
accumulate vacation leave at the rate of 10 hours for each month worked. 

 
3. For all months worked in the previous calendar year beyond the eighth and 

prior to the thirteenth service date with the City, an employee shall 
accumulate vacation leave at the rate of 13 1/3 hours for each month 
worked. 

 
4. For all months worked in the previous calendar year beyond the thirteenth 

service date with the City, an employee shall accumulate vacation leave at 
the rate of 15 hours for each month worked. 

 



16 
 

5. For all months worked in the previous calendar year beyond the eighteenth 
service date with the City, an employee shall accumulate vacation leave at 
the rate of 16 2/3 hours for each month worked. 

 
 B. For purposes of this section, “months worked” shall mean any calendar month 
where an employee is on the payroll for a minimum of twenty (20) days, including time worked 
and any payable leave time, including but not limited to personal leave, holidays, sick leave, 
vacation, funeral leave, and unpaid military leave up to two weeks. 
 
 C. Upon normal retirement, early retirement, disability retirement, death, or 
resignation (in good standing), all unused vacation leave will be paid to the employee (or spouse) 
at the rate of 100% unless one or more of the following applies: 
 

1. An employee fails to give at least ten (10) working days notice in advance 
of his termination date; or 

 
2. An employee leaves the City prior to completion of his original 

probationary period.  Payments for unused vacation leave at retirement 
shall be excluded from the computation of Final Average Compensation 
(FAC) for pension purposes for all members of this bargaining unit. 

 
D.  
 
 1. Employees may use up to 80 hours of accrued vacation leave time on a 

one-day-at-a-time basis.  Vacation leave time taken on a one-day-at-a-time 
basis must be utilized in a regular full shift block (8 or 10 hours depending 
on work assignment).  Unused vacation leave up to the accrued leave 
scheduled the past year will be paid off at the rate of 100%. 

 
 2. Employees accruing 120 or more hours vacation leave time per year must 

use a minimum of 40 hours in a consecutive fashion (4 or 5 consecutive 
work days as applicable). 

 
 3. The carrying over of unused vacation leave to the next year is prohibited 

except under exigent circumstances as determined and approved by the 
Chief of Police.  Decisions regarding the approval or denial of vacation 
leave carryover are not grievable and are subject to City of Troy policy 
regarding usage. 

 
 E. Requests for time off by Communications Supervisors shall be submitted in 
writing to the Communications Manager.  Requests for time off by the Communications 
Manager shall be submitted in writing to the appropriate Division Commander. 
 



17 
 

27.  DISABILITY INSURANCE 
 
A. The City will provide short-term disability insurance for all Employees.  Said insurance 

will provide approximately sixty (60) percent of an Employee’s gross salary after a 
thirty (30) day waiting period for a maximum of fifty-two (52) weeks.  If available, a 
charge of up to eight (8) hours per week of the Employee’s accrued leave time will 
supplement and be in addition to this insurance. 

 
B. Long-term disability insurance will be provided by the City for all Employees who have 

three (3) or more years of service at the time of the next opening date of the insurance 
policy.  Eligible employees must be accepted by the insurance company.  Said insurance 
shall provide approximately fifty (50) percent of gross salary beginning twelve (12) 
months after an extended absence due to sickness or accident.  The insurance shall 
continue until the Employee’s death, retirement, or return to work (or in the case of non-
duty disability, up to five (5) years whichever is sooner).  If available, a charge of up to 
eight (8) hours per week of the Employee’s accrued leave time will supplement and be in 
addition to this insurance. 

 
C. Employees who are absent from work 120 consecutive days or longer will cease to accrue 

paid leave time.  However, in the case of absence for duty-related injury, accrual of paid 
leave time will cease after a period of absence of one (1) year. 

 
 
 

28.  DUTY-CONNECTED DISABILITY 
 

 A. Any employee who sustains a disabling injury in the performance of his regular 
duties may be eligible for Workers’ Compensation benefits in accordance with applicable 
Workers’ Compensation laws of the State of Michigan.  The City shall pay a supplement to 
Workers’ Compensation benefits to the extent that the employee shall receive approximately 
80% of his base daily rate (excluding overtime and shift premium), without loss of leave time, 
for a period of thirty (30) days maximum, at which time the Short-Term Disability insurance 
shall become effective.  Payment of any supplement to Workers’ Compensation benefits by the 
City is dependent on the employee: 
 

1. Complying with all reasonable rules promulgated by the City regarding 
duty-related disability. 

 
2. Treating with the City designated clinic for at least the first ten days 

following the injury. 
 
3. Providing periodic updates or reports from the treating physician if 

requested by the City. 
 
4. Performing in a light duty status consistent with the recommendation of 

the attending physician, if desired and directed by the City. 



18 
 

 
5. Consenting to examination by a third physician when, in the opinion of the 

City, there is a conflict between the opinions of any two attending 
physicians. 

 
 

29.  LIFE INSURANCE 
 

 A. The Life Insurance program shall provide participating employees with $1,000 of 
life insurance for each $1,000 of salary. His insurance is term insurance and includes double 
indemnity for accidental death.  For this insurance, the employee contributes 10 cents for each 
$1,000 of insurance per pay period.  Each employee will have a policy issued to him.  Life 
insurance is effective on the first day of employment. 
 

30.  HOSPITALIZATION AND MEDICAL INSURANCE 
 

 A. The Employer shall provide hospitalization and medical insurance for employee 
and family equal to or better than the following: 
 

1. Blue Cross Community Blue PPO Plan 1 Modified, including the 
following: 

 
a. $10/$40 prescription drug rider with mandatory generic, prior 

authorization, step therapy, and 2X MOPD. 
b. $30 office visit co-pay 
c. $50 emergency room co-pay 
d. $30 chiropractic office visit co-pay 
e. $250/$500 basic deductible 
 
Any available HMOs will include a, b and c above. 
 

2. Vision care every 24 months 
 
3. Dental Insurance including Class A, B and C benefits with a 10% 

employee co-payment for claims and a maximum annual benefit of $1,000 
per person, and orthodontic benefits with a 50% employee co-payment 
and a $2,000 maximum lifetime benefit per child to age 19. 

 
 B. An employee who elects to be covered by a City health insurance plan shall 
contribute 5% of the monthly premium cost by means of a payroll deduction. 
 
 C. Employees who choose not to subscribe to medical insurance through the city of 
Troy will receive $200 per month. 
 



19 
 

 D. Employees who are married to each other are not permitted to both subscribe to 
health or dental insurance provided by the City of Troy.  The spouse who opts out of employer 
provided health insurance is not eligible for the cash-in-lieu payment. 
 
 
 E. The City may purchase equivalent or better medical insurance from another 
carrier provided prior notice is given the Union. 
 
 

31.  CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 
 

 A. Each fiscal year, every employee shall be allotted a basic clothing allowance of 
$500.  Said clothing allowance shall be placed in an account in the employee’s name and shall be 
disbursed to the employee upon submittal of receipts for approved clothing and personal 
equipment purchases. 
 
 It is clearly understood that clothing allowance has a prospective application and is 
intended to cover purchases for the entire fiscal year.  In the event that employment is interrupted 
for such reasons as retirement, or leave of absence or injury leave in excess of six (6) months, the 
City shall have the right to adjust such payments on a prorated basis and make adjustments in 
payments for the following fiscal year based on overpayments in the current year. 
 
 B. $25 of unused funds from the basic clothing allowance may be carried forward 
into the following fiscal year. 
 
 C. The amount and type of uniforms and equipment shall be as determined by the 
Police Chief.   
 
 D. Each employee shall receive an annual cleaning allowance of up to $375 on or 
before May 20th of each year. 
 

32.  LONGEVITY 
 

 All employees who were hired prior July 1, 1993 shall continue to receive longevity pay 
on or before December 20 of each payment year in accordance with the following schedule: 
 

Years of continuous City service as 
of November 30 of payment year   Amount 

 
  14 – 18 Years     $2,625 
  19 or Over     $3,500 
 



20 
 

33.  RETIREMENT 
 

 A. Defined Benefit Plan 
 
  1. All employees (except as noted in Sec. 34.B.) shall participate in the 
Retirement System Pension Program, as explained in Chapter 10 of the Troy City Code.  The 
Straight Life Pension and the Age and Service Retirement shall continue as provided in sections 
6.1(A) and 6.1(B) except that the benefit computation shall be 2.5% from age 50 to 62, and 
2.25% from age 62. 
 
  2. Association members shall contribute 1.5% of gross payroll, in order to 
assist in the funding of the member’s pension under the Retirement System Pension Program. 
 
  3. The pension formula shall determine average final compensation by 
utilizing the three (3) best years of service of the last ten (10) years of service. 
 
 B. Defined Contribution Plan 
 
  Effective June 15, 2000, new hires and employees transferring into the bargaining 
unit who are participating in another City Defined Contribution Plan at the time of such transfer 
shall participate in an IRS §401(a) Defined Contribution (DC) Pension Program as a member of 
this unit. 
 
  1. Contribution rates: 
 
   Employee – 4% 
 
   Employer – 12% (employees hired before 1/1/04) 
     11% (employees hired on or after 1/1/04) 
     10% (employees hired on or after 7/1/05) 
 
  2. Vesting schedule for Employer Contributions: Employees hired after 
1/1/98, shall be 50% vested at three years, 75% vested at four years and 100% vested at five 
years. 
 
  3. Participants in the defined contribution plan shall also participate in a 
disability plan equivalent to the defined benefit disability plan as set forth in the retirement 
ordinance.  The City’s liability for the disability benefit shall be offset (1) by an amount which 
may be payable pursuant to the Worker’s Compensation Act, if applicable, and (2) by the 
lifetime annuity value of the employee’s 401 (a) defined contribution retirement account, 
determined as of the effective date of the employee’s disability-related separation from service.  
Defined contributions shall include all contributions and income accumulated in the plan account 
whether derived by the contributions made by the employee or employer, including any amounts 
transferred into the plan.  While the employee is receiving disability benefits or is receiving 
worker’s compensation, the City of Troy shall contribute the employer rate, as contained in 



21 
 

subsection 1 above, of the disabled employee’s taxable wage for deposit in the defined 
contribution plan for the employee’s benefits. 
 
  4. Participants in the defined contribution plan shall also be covered in the 
event of death, including non-duty death, with a benefit equivalent to the defined benefit plan as 
set forth in the retirement ordinance.  The City’s liability for a death benefit shall be offset (1) by 
and amount which may be payable pursuant to the workers’ compensation act, if applicable, and 
(2) by the lifetime annuity value of the employee’s 401(a) defined contribution retirement 
account, determined as of the effective date of the employee’s death. 
 
 C. Retiree Medical Insurance 
 
  1. For employees hired before January 2, 2006: 
 

Upon regular retirement, early retirement or disability retirement, 
employees will be eligible for health insurance, equivalent to that received 
by members of the bargaining unit at the time of the employee’s 
retirement if they meet the age and service requirements whether they 
participate in the Defined Benefit or Defined Contribution Pension Plan.  
Such insurance will be provided for two-person coverage for retiree and 
spouse (or dependent child) at the time of retirement, at the rate of 4% per 
complete year of retirement service with the City of Troy (maximum 
100%), provided that the retiree or spouse is drawing pension benefits 
pursuant to the City of Troy Retirement Ordinance. 
 

2. Employees hired on or after January 2, 2006 participate in a Retirement 
Health Savings Plan (RHS): 

 
a. Contributions: The contribution rates for this plan are (as a % of 

pensionable earnings) 
 
  Employer: 4% 
  Employee: 2% 
 
b. Vesting: Employees are 50% vested at three years, 75% vested 

after four years, and 100% vested after five years.  The vesting 
percentage applies to employer contributions only. 

   
   
 



22 
 

34.  WAGES 
 

 A. Annual salaries for Communications Supervisors and Communications Managers 
are outlined in the following schedule: 
 
Communications Supervisors: 
 Year 1 Year 2 
Hire $52,000 $52,000 
End of Probation (1 Year) $54,500 $54,500 
2 Years $57,000 $57,000 
4 Years + $59,500 $59,500 
 
Communications Manager: 
 Year 1 Year 2 
Start $64,000 $64,000 
After Probation (1 Year) $66,000 $66,000 
2 Years $68,000 $68,000 
 
 B. If an employee does not receive a step increase in accordance with the appropriate 
schedule above, the matter shall be subject to the grievance procedure.  Within thirty (30) days 
after the date of the denial, the proposed step increase shall again be reviewed.  The involved 
employee shall be advised of this review and shall have the opportunity to discuss it with the 
reviewing employee(s), the Captain, and the Chief.  The probationary period for employees will 
be one (1) year. 
 
 C. Employees regularly scheduled by the City to work on the second or third shift 
(commonly referred to as the Afternoon and Midnight shifts, respectively) shall receive a shift 
bonus.  The shift bonus shall be as follows: Second Shift (Afternoons) - $.35, Third Shift 
(Midnights) - $.45.  If employees supervised by members of this association are paid a shift 
bonus higher than those listed above, those members will receive shift bonuses equal to those 
paid to their subordinates. 
 
 D. Employees whose salaries exceed the annual salaries set forth in Section A above 
shall be redlined at their current salary for the duration of the Agreement. 
 
 

35.  PROMOTIONS 
 

 A. Eligible and qualified Communications Supervisors will be permitted to test for 
the position of Communications Manager.  If no eligible and qualified Communications 
Supervisor is interested in the position of Communications Manager, outside applicants will be 
considered. 
 
 B. Eligibility to test will be determined based on minimum requirements as 
established by the Human Resources Department. 
 



23 
 

 C. The Chief of Police will make a determination as to whether or not an eligible 
Communications Supervisor is qualified to test for the position of Communications Manager.  In 
making such a determination, the Chief will seek input from those who, in the Chief’s opinion, 
are in the position to comment knowledgeably on the candidate’s suitability for the position.  
This includes but is not limited to the candidate’s supervisor and the Operations Division 
Commander. 
 
 D. If a candidate is not determined to be qualified to test for the position of 
Communications Manager, the candidate may request feedback from the Chief as to areas 
requiring improvement, however such a determination is not subject to grievance or other civil 
action. 
 
 E. An eligible list shall be established based on test results of qualified candidates 
passing all test components.  Selection shall be made by the Chief of Police.  Such decision is not 
subject to the grievance procedure or other civil action. 
 
 

36.  EXIT INTERVIEWS 
 

 Any employee terminating active employment with the City will be given an exit 
interview by an employee of the Human Resources Department and/or Finance Department 
during which time an explanation of all rights and benefits, as well as an accounting of all sums 
due, will be provided to the employee or, in the case of death, this information will be provided 
to his or her spouse. 
 

37.  WAIVER OF NEGOTIATIONS 
 

 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, 
each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any 
subject matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the 
understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of the right and 
opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.  Therefore, the Employer and the Union, for the life 
of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and agrees that the other 
shall not be obliged to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or 
covered in this Agreement, or with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or 
covered by this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the 
knowledge or contemplation of either or both parties at the time that they negotiated or signed 
this Agreement.  
 

38.  JUDICIAL REVIEW 
 

 If any article or section of this Agreement or any supplement thereto shall be held invalid 
by the operation of law or by any tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement and supplements 
thereto shall not be affected thereby. 

 



24 
 

39.  DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

 This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from July 1, 2011 until June 30, 
2013, and thereafter until amended or modified.  Either party may, between January 1, 2013 and 
March 1, 2013, serve written notice upon the other party of its desire to modify or amend this 
Agreement.  In such event, the parties shall commence negotiations immediately on such 
proposed amendments for a succeeding contract.  Any such amendment or modification would 
become effective after June 30, 2013. 
 
 

40.  EMERGENCY MANAGER 
 

 Pursuant to PA 9 of 2011, each collective bargaining agreement entered into between a 
public employer and public employees under this act after the effective date of the amendatory 
act that added this subsection shall include a provision that allows an emergency manager 
appointed under the local government and school district fiscal accountability act to reject, 
modify, or terminate the collective bargaining agreement as provided in the local government 
and school district fiscal accountability act.  Provisions required by this subsection are prohibited 
subjects of bargaining under this act.  In the event a financial manager is assigned in accordance 
with the PA 9 of 2011 the Union reserves its right to challenge the constitutionality of the law.  
 
 In Witness Whereof, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement upon this   
  . 
 
 
FOR THE ASSOCIATION:    FOR THE EMPLOYER: 
Command Officers Association of Michigan  City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan 
 
              
Business Agent     Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
Troy Communications Supervisors 
Association 
 
              
Local President     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
              
       Aileen Bittner, Acting City Clerk 
 
 
             
       Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 
 
 
G:Collective Bargaining Agreements/TCSA/2011-2013 



LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
 

 This Agreement, entered into on the ____ day of July, 2011, between the City of Troy 
and the Troy Communication Supervisors Association: 
 
 Effective July 1, 2011 and expiring June 30, 2013, each employee shall 
concede/relinquish a minimum of 13 hours of concessionary time quarterly, not to exceed the 
equivalent of 52 hours annually.  The concessionary time may be comprised of reductions to the 
employee’s bank of allotted holiday leave time or allotted vacation time, at the employee’s 
discretion.  If an employee fails to select his/her preference for leave time deductions, the 
required balance will be met by deductions in the following order: holiday, vacation, sick leave.  
Only those hours of accumulated sick leave in excess of the annual maximum allowable 
accumulation may be used for this purpose.  An employee may elect to forego pay for earned 
overtime and apply that time to meet the requirements of concessionary time.  An employee may 
elect to have his/her pay reduced by 2 hours per pay period in lieu of the concessionary time 
commitment above.  This shall be a one-time selection within 7 calendar days after the 
ratification of the Agreement by both the City and the Union. 
 
 
FOR THE CITY:      FOR THE UNION: 
 
 
              
 
Dated:         Dated:       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:Negotiations/TCSA/2009/LofU Concessionary Time 2011-07-07 



LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
 

 This Agreement, entered into on the ____ day of July, 2011, between the City of Troy 
and the Troy Communication Supervisors Association: 
 
 The Early Retirement Incentive Plan consisting of two options (cash incentive of 
$1,000.00 per year of service or Defined Contribution to Defined Benefit) will be offered to the 
eligible members of the bargaining unit (upon the same eligibility rules as other City of Troy 
bargaining units) provided that an actuarial evaluation for said Plan determines that 
implementation of the Plan for the unit is at least cost-neutral and does not impose a financial 
cost to the City.  The Plan shall be made available to eligible employees for a period of at least 
90 days after receipt of the actuarial report, provided such evaluation establishes a cost neutral 
basis. 
 
 
 
FOR THE CITY:      FOR THE UNION: 
 
 
              
 
Dated:         Dated:       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:Negotiations/TCSA/2009/LofU ERIP 2011-07-07 
 



TCSA NEGOTIATIONS ‐ 

PROPOSED SETTLEMENT SAVINGS

(As % of Payroll)

ISSUE

ANNUAL 

SAVINGS

Replace PPO Health Insur. w/Community 

Blue Plan I Modified $30,181

Elimination of Shift Prep Time $35,451

Equivalent of 2.5% Pay Reduction $16,626

Elimination of Premium Pay for Training 

Officer $3,213

Elimination of Double Time for 7th Day $2,877

Total Annual Savings $88,348

Savings as Percent of Base Pay + Rollups 

[Pension, Work. Comp., FICA] ($665,029) 13.28%

Savings as Percent of Base Pay Only 

($541,919) 16.30%

G:Negotiations/TCSA/2010/TA Settlement Savings 2011‐07‐08



1 
G:ERIP\TCSA\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-07-19 
 

 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM  2011 
TCSA Employees 

 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:  
 
The City of Troy is implementing an Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) in the form of 
two options, a cash incentive or a DC to DB conversion, in order to reduce personnel costs to 
accommodate budget constraints.  The Program is being offered to eligible employees if the 
employee signs a Letter of Understanding with the City of Troy and, in the case of a union 
employee, that union agrees to the terms and conditions of the Program.  Participation in the 
Program is entirely voluntary.  Interested eligible employees in either the DB Pension Plan or the 
DC Pension Plan may elect to participate, but can only select one of the available options.  
Participating employees must retire on or before the date specified in the Plan. 
 
 
INCENTIVE OPTIONS:   
 
Cash Incentive 
Eligible employees in either the Defined Benefit or Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect 
to receive a cash incentive that is equal to $1,000 for each actual complete year of credited 
service with the City of Troy as of June 30, 2011.  The cash incentive will be issued not later 
than three weeks after the employees’ designated retirement date.  The number of years for 
which the cash incentive is made shall not include years of service granted for prior government 
service from an employer other than the City of Troy.   
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan, the incentive will not be 
included in any computation of Final Average Compensation (FAC) under any provisions of the 
Retirement System.  Both the City and the employee will make the required contributions to the 
plan. 
 
For those employees participating in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan, the employee and 
the City of Troy will each contribute their appropriate percentage to the plan.   
 
DC to DB Conversion 
Eligible employees in the Defined Contribution Pension Plan may elect to transfer their total 
accumulated balance (including all employee contributions and interest thereon) to the City of 
Troy Employees Retirement System-Defined Benefit Plan.  Their pension will be based solely on 
the value of their accumulated DC account balance at the date of transfer as determined by the 
Retirement System’s actuary.   
 
 
GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Employees who are eligible to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program will be sent 
notification following approval of the program by City Council.  The notice will include the 
Early Retirement Incentive Program Voluntary Resignation Agreement and Release of Claims 
form, a Receipt form and a Waiver of Review Period form.  Employees will have a minimum of 



2 
G:ERIP\TCSA\Description-Early Retirement Incentive Program  - 2011-07-19 
 

 

45 days in which to consider the Release in order to seek counsel regarding their rights.  If the 
employee chooses to waive the 45-day review period, he/she must submit the signed Waiver.  
Employees who elect to participate in the Program must submit the signed Release not later than 
the end of the window period and will have seven (7) days after signing to revoke their decision.  
Retirement dates are subject to approval, and retirement must occur not later than November 15, 
2011.   
 
 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS:   
 
The Program will be available to TCSA employees who meet the age and service requirements 
for normal or early retirement as of June 30, 2011, or are within five years of eligibility, as 
defined by the Employee Retirement System Ordinance or by the respective collective 
bargaining agreement.  These eligibility requirements are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EFFECTIVE DATES: 
 

Window Period (45-days minimum): July 27, 2011 through October 25, 2011 
 
Revocation Period Ends (7 days):  November 1, 2011 

 
Retirement Not Later Than:  November 15, 2011 

 
GROUP A 
Regular Retirement 
 

Age 50 with 27 years of service; or 
Age 55 with 25 years of service; or 
Age 60 with 10 years of service 

 
Early Retirement  

Age 55 with 10 years of service 
 
 
GROUP B 

Those within five (5) years of eligibility as stated above 



 

 

 

 

 

 

May 26, 2011 

 

 

 

 

CONFIDENTIAL 

 

Mr. John Lamerato 
Assistant City Manager - Finance 

City of Troy 

500 West Big Beaver Road 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

 

Re: A Supplemental Valuation of the Effect of a Proposed Early Retirement 

Incentive Plan (ERIP) for the City of Troy-TCSA 

 

Dear Mr. Lamerato: 

 

This report presents the results of a supplemental valuation of the potential impact of a proposed 

Early Retirement Incentive Plan on the City of Troy Employees Retirement System (ERS) and 

Retiree Health Plan.  A summary of the Early Retirement Incentive Plan provisions is shown on the 

following page.   
 

Except where indicated, this valuation was based on the actuarial assumptions and methods used in 

the most recent ERS and Other Postemployment Benefits annual actuarial valuations.   
 

Both of the undersigned are Members of the American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA) and meet 

the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinions 

contained herein. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Brad Armstrong, ASA, EA, MAAA 

 

 

 

Randall J. Dziubek, ASA, EA, MAAA 

 

BLA/RJD:sc 

Enclosures 

 

 



May 26, 2011  -1- 

 

CITY OF TROY  

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-TCSA 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)  

PROPOSED PROVISIONS 
 

 

ERIP  

Eligibility: Member is eligible or within five years of eligibility for regular or early 

retirement as of April 30, 2011.  Members of both the ERS and the Defined Contribution 

Plan (DC) are eligible for the ERIP. 

 

Benefits provided by the ERIP: 

 ERS Members – Immediate commencement of unreduced retirement benefit 

based on accrued service as of April 30, 2011.  

 ERS and DC Members - Immediate commencement of retiree health benefits 

based on accrued service as of April 30, 2011. 

 ERS and DC Members – All eligible members as of April 30, 2011 will receive a 

lump sum payment of $1,000 for each complete year of service as of the same 

date.  These lump sums will not be funded by the Retirement System.  In the case 

of DC members, the eligibility for the lump sum is contingent on not converting 

their DC balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



May 26, 2011  -2- 

 

 

CITY OF TROY  

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ERS)-TCSA 

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PLAN (ERIP)  

PROPOSED PROVISIONS 
 

 

DATA PROVIDED TO THE ACTUARY:   The City provided a listing of all of the active members 

that are believed to be eligible for the ERIP.  The listing was reviewed for reasonableness, but 

was not audited by the actuary. 

 

A summary of individuals deemed eligible for the ERIP and included in this report is shown 

below:  

 
 

 

Number Total

Group Count Annual Payroll

ERS

NR Eligible -        -                    

ER Eligible -        -                    

Eligible within 5 yrs. -        -                    

Total ERS -        -                    

DC Plan

NR Eligible 1            89,857    $         51.1 yrs. 33.4 yrs. 33.4 yrs.

ER Eligible -        -                    

Eligible within 5 yrs. 3            210,117             49.9 16.8 16.8

Total DC Plan 4            299,974    $       50.2 yrs. 21.0 yrs. 21.0 yrs.

Data as of April 30, 2011

Average Average Service

Age Benefit Eligibility

 
  



May 26, 2011  -3- 

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 

 

The estimated impact of the proposed ERIP as of April 30, 2011 is shown below, assuming 

100% of eligible members retire.  The “Retiree Health” results represent the impact of immediate 

retirement for both ERS and DC Plan members. 

  

Annual contribution results shown below were determined by amortizing the increase in the 

present value of benefits over a five-year period as a level percent of pay.  These contribution 

results are not the expected increases in the Annual Required Contributions (ARC) that will be 

determined in the actuarial valuations following the ERIP, but are a good representation of the 

expected overall costs of the ERIP if paid off over a five-year period.  

 

 

 

Annual Contribution

Required to Amortize Percentage of Eligible Members Assumed

PV Increase Over 5 Years to Retire Under the Program

Pension -$                  -$                   

Retiree Health 83,892          18,315           

Sub-Total 83,892$        18,315$         

$1,000 x Service * 41,000          NA

Total 124,892$      18,315$         

Reduced Member DB Contributions -$                  -$                   

Increased Benefits Plus Reduced

Member DB Contributions 124,892$      18,315$         

Increase in 

Present Value (PV)

 of Projected Benefits

 
* The $1,000 x Service amounts shown above are based on accrued service as of April 30, 2011.  These lump sum 

payments will not be funded by the Retirement System. The cost to amortize over 5 years is not shown since it is 

assumed these payments will be made immediately following the retirement of participating members.  

 

 

Increase in Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for Retiree Health Benefits 

 

The Annual Required Contribution for retiree health benefits is currently based on the Entry-Age 

Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The expected increase in the actuarial accrued liability 

(AAL) for retiree health benefits under the EAN cost method due to the proposed ERIP is 

$185,916.  Under current methods, 30-year amortization of the increase in the AAL under the 

EAN cost method will be included in the calculation of the ARC in the valuation following the 

ERIP. 

 

  



May 26, 2011  -4- 

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 

 

The chart below illustrates the total expected cost of the additional pension and retiree health 

benefits provided under the ERIP alternatives if spread over a five year period. These results do 

not reflect the potential savings associated with the ERIP due to decreased payroll and fringe 

benefit costs and other factors. For an overall measure of the estimated cost/savings associated 

with the ERIP, the costs shown below should be combined with any expected savings due to 

decreased payroll and other factors.  If the expected savings due to these factors over the next 

five years is equal to the costs shown below, the ERIP can be considered cost neutral to the City. 

 

 

 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

$45,000

1 2 3 4 5 6

A
n

n
u

a
l 

C
o

st

Year

Estimated Annual Cost of ERIP Alternatives Amortized Over 5 Years

 

 

 
The estimated cost of the $1,000 x service benefit is shown in Year 1.  The 5-year amortization 

of additional costs under the ERIP is shown in Years 2-6.  Year 1 represents the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2011. We assumed that 50% of the eligible DC Plan members will elect to 

convert their DC balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System thereby forgoing any 

lump sum payment. 



May 26, 2011  -5- 

 

RESULTS OF THE VALUATION 
 

 

It is likely that less than 100% of eligible members will choose to retire under this ERIP.  In the 

table below, we show the estimated increase in the present value of benefits and the 5-year 

amortization payment of these increases based on various election percentages (please refer to 

Comment 4 on page 6).  Each of the sets of results shown assume 50% of the eligible DC Plan 

members will elect to convert their DC balance to a DB annuity under the Retirement System 

thereby forgoing any lump sum payment. 

 

 
Percentage of Eligible Members Assumed

to Retire Under the Program

100% 75% 50% 25%

Number Assumed to Retire from ERS -               -               -               -              

Number Assumed to Retire from DC Plan 4                   3                   2                   1                 

Increase in PV of Benefits Plus Reduced 

Member DB Contributions

Pension -$             -$             -$             -$            

Retiree Health 83,892          62,919          41,946          20,973        

$1,000 x Service 41,000          30,750          20,500          10,250        

Reduced Member DB Contributions -               -               -               -              

Total 124,892$      93,669$        62,446$        31,223$      

5-Year Amortization of Above (In addition 

to One-Time Cost of $1,000 x Service)

Pension -$             -$             -$             -$            

Retiree Health 18,315          13,736          9,158            4,579          

Reduced Member DB Contributions -               -               -               -              

Total 18,315$        13,736$        9,158$          4,579$         
 

 

Please see the Comments on pages 6 and 7 for important information that is essential to 

understanding this report. 

  



May 26, 2011  -6- 

 

COMMENTS 
 

 

Comment 1:  This report is based on an assumption that individuals reported by the City as 

eligible for the ERIP, elect the ERIP and then retire on April 30, 2011.  Data used for this report 

was based on the data provided by the City regarding eligible members as of April 30, 2011.  Pay 

data and service provided for the December 31, 2010 annual actuarial valuation of the ERS was 

used to estimate pensionable earnings at retirement.  

 

 

Comment 2:  This report is based on the data and assumptions noted above and the proposed 

ERIP provisions shown on page 1.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were 

used are unreasonable, that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important and 

relevant plan provisions are not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations 

were made, you should contact the authors of this report prior to relying on information in the 

report.   

 

 

Comment 3:  This report shows the potential impact of the proposed ERIP on ERS pension and 

retiree health care costs as of April 30, 2011.  The non-retirement costs/savings in other areas 

(payroll savings, fringe benefit savings, employer contributions to new hire defined contribution 

accounts, etc.) are not included in this report.  

 

 

Comment 4:  The cost of the proposed ERIP has been developed assuming that all of the 

individuals shown in this report are eligible for the ERIP and will elect to retire on April 30, 

2011.  Please be aware that the cost of the ERIP will vary for each individual member.  For 

example, if half of the eligible employees elect to retire, and these employees are the ones who 

would benefit most from the incentive, the cost would be more than 50% of the “100% retire” 

cost shown in this report.  In other words, in the examples of 75%, 50%, and 25% election 

percentages on page 5, the cost would be increased if the employees electing to retire are the 

employees who would benefit most from the proposal. 

 

 

Comment 5:  The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommended practice for 

evaluating the use of early retirement incentives has been included in the Appendix of this report.  

The GFOA recommends the use of a short amortization period (such as 3-5 years) to finance the 

incremental cost of an early retirement incentive plan.  Since savings are typically realized over a 

short period, the costs should also be recognized over a similar period.  Regardless of the time 

period selected for funding, we recommend that policy makers carefully consider the 5 year 

results shown in this correspondence in the decision making process.  

 

 

Comment 6:  The calculations are based upon assumptions regarding future events, which may 

or may not materialize.  They are also based upon present and proposed plan provisions that are 

outlined in the report.  If you have reason to believe that the assumptions that were used are 

unreasonable, that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important plan provisions 

relevant to this proposal are not described, or that conditions have changed since the calculations 

were made, you should contact the authors of this report prior to relying on information in the 

report. 

  



May 26, 2011  -7- 

 

COMMENTS  
 

 

Comment 7:  If you have reason to believe that the information provided in this report is 

inaccurate, or is in any way incomplete, or if you need further information in order to make an 

informed decision on the subject matter of this report, please contact the authors of the report 

prior to making such decision. 

 

 

Comment 8:  No statement in this report is intended to be interpreted as a recommendation in 

favor of the changes, or in opposition to them. 

 

 

Comment 9:  This report is intended to describe the financial effect of the proposed plan 

changes on the retirement system. Except as otherwise noted, potential effects on other benefit 

plans were not considered. 

 

 

Comment 10: The reader of this report should keep in mind that actuarial calculations are 

mathematical estimates based on current data and assumptions about future events (which may 

or may not materialize).  Please note that actuarial calculations can and do vary from one 

valuation year to the next, sometimes significantly if the group valued is very small (less than 30 

lives).  As a result, the cost impact of a benefit change may fluctuate over time, as the 

demographics of the group changes. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 

 



 

May 26, 2011  -8- 

 

 

 
 

GFOA Recommended Practice 

 

Evaluating Use of Early Retirement Incentives - 2004 

 

Background.  Governments occasionally offer early retirement incentives (ERIs)
1
 to employees as a 

strategy to reduce payroll costs or stimulate short-term turnover among staff.  ERIs are temporary, 

offered during a window that usually covers a period of months.  They increase the economic value of 

the standard retirement benefit. Historically, ERIs rarely have succeeded, since costs are often greater 

than initially anticipated by the government offering the incentive, and savings are lower than 

projected. 

 

Recommendation.  GFOA recommends that governments exercise extreme caution if considering 

ERIs.  Governments should take several actions prior to the decision to offer an ERI in terms of (1) 

goal-setting, (2) cost/benefit analysis, and (3) budgetary analysis.  Governments should also develop an 

implementation plan. 

 

1.  Goal-Setting for ERIs 

 

Governments should be explicit in setting documented goals for the ERI.  Goals can be financial in 

nature, such as realizing permanent efficiencies in staffing or achieving budgetary objectives.  ERIs 

can also be designed to achieve human resource goals, such as creating vacancies that allow for 

additional promotion opportunities and allowing management to bring in new staff.  Any ERI goals 

should not conflict with other retirement plan goals (e.g., features to reduce turnover or increase 

retention). 

 

An explicit statement of goals is needed to judge the ultimate success of the initiative and to develop 

performance measures.  Further, having a statement of goals promotes transparency.  Inappropriate 

goals such as rewarding a select group of staff should be explicitly rejected.  Potential conflicts of 

interest among decision-makers who design an ERI should be monitored closely, since any self-dealing 

is costly and could harm the long-term credibility of the government entity. 

 

2.  Cost/benefit analysis 

 

In judging whether an ERI should be offered, governments should assess the potential costs and 

benefits of ERI proposals, and the cost/benefit analysis should be linked to the goals of the ERI.  For 

example, if a government sets a financial goal of obtaining long-term staffing efficiencies, then an 

                                                 
1
 The scope of this recommended practice does not cover deferred retirement option plans (DROP) or partial lump-sum 

option plans (PLOP), which often promote employee retention.  The CORBA Committee may address this issue separately. 



 

May 26, 2011  -9- 

 

independent cost/benefit analysis should determine whether the ERI will actually bring about such  

 

staffing efficiencies.  A cost/benefit analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account 

direct and indirect impacts, such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and 

additional contractor costs.  In addition, it should take into account the effect upon both the plan 

sponsor and the pension fund (if the pension fund is a separate organization).  Governments should 

retain an actuary to assist in conducting a cost/benefit analysis. 

 

Material changes to the ERI proposal during the legislative process should trigger adjustments to the 

cost/benefit and budgetary analyses. 

 

Regarding financially-driven ERIs, a cost/benefit analysis should compare long-term benefits and costs 

against the “default” scenario of a hiring freeze.  Most financially-driven ERIs project financial 

benefits based on payroll savings related to staff departures. However, any such savings should be 

discounted, because a hiring freeze also creates payroll savings (owing to the normal rate of staff 

departures).  Thus, the ERI benefit is limited to the marginal increase in staff departures attributable to 

the ERI.  Governments that attribute all staff departures to an ERI would over-state the ERI benefit, 

thus distorting the cost/benefit analysis. 

 

Financially-driven ERIs may also obtain savings by replacing highly compensated staff with lower-

paid staff.  Analysis of such ERIs must take into account the fact that newly hired staff tend to 

experience faster salary increases than other employees. 

 

If early retirement incentives are offered, they should be offered very infrequently and without a 

predictable schedule to avoid the expectation that another ERI will be offered.  Such an expectation 

would distort normal employee retirement patterns.   

 

The incremental costs of an ERI should be amortized over a short-term payback period, such as three 

to five years.  This payback period should match the period in which the savings are realized.  To 

calculate the incremental costs of an ERI, governments should conduct an actuarial analysis that 

discloses the present value of the liabilities associated with an ERI.  Governments that have over-

funded pension plans should avoid allocating any actuarial surplus to finance the incremental costs of 

the ERI.   

 

3. Budgetary considerations 

 

In order to develop accurate budgetary estimates for the ERI, it is necessary to estimate the incremental 

cost of the ERI, which will vary according to the level of employee participation.  Any budgetary 

analysis should project multiple scenarios for employee participation levels. 

 

A budgetary analysis should be comprehensive.  It should take into account direct and indirect impacts, 

such as the impact on the government for providing retiree health care and additional contractor costs.   

 

Because a collective bargaining agreement may affect potential ERI costs and benefits, it should be 

reviewed prior to developing budgetary estimates.   

  



 

May 26, 2011  -10- 

 

4. Implementation considerations 

 

If implementing an ERI, at a minimum, governments should take into account the following points: 

 

 A communication plan is desirable to help employees understand the ERI in the context 

of overall retirement planning; 

 

 It may be necessary to gain input from collective bargaining units; 

 

 Governments should consider the impact upon service delivery after employees retire, 

with identification of critical personnel whose services must be maintained; 

 

 The duration of the window should take into account the ability of retirement staff to 

manage retirement application workloads, among other factors; and 

 

 Performance measures should be used to ensure ERI goals are met.  For financially-

driven ERIs, governments should track and report direct and indirect costs and benefits to 

determine if goals are met, such as for vacancies and contract costs. 

 

 

 

References:   

 

A Primer on Early Retirement Incentives, GFOA, 2004. 

 

 

Approved by the GFOA Executive Board, October 15, 2004. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date: July 19, 2011 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AMENDMENT OF CONSENT JUDGMENT AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

APPROVAL (File Number SP 186 A) – Proposed Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy 
Drive-Through, Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), 
Section 10, Currently Zoned Neighborhood Node M District (Controlled by Consent 
Judgment) 

 
 
 
 
Background 
 
The applicant, NORR, LLC, proposes to add a drive-through addition to an existing CVS Pharmacy.  
Some other minor site improvements are proposed including some additional landscaping.  The 
building addition will be constructed of similar materials as the existing façade. The attached report, 
prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., summarizes the item. 
 
The development is controlled by consent judgment, which stipulates that City Council has the 
authority to approve revisions to the Preliminary Site Plan.   
 
The Planning Commission considered this application at the May 24, 2011 Special/Study meeting 
and postponed the item to allow the petitioner to revise the drawings based on Planning Commission 
recommendations.  The Planning Commission considered the application again at the June 14, 2011 
Regular meeting and recommended approval of the Preliminary Site Plan, subject to four conditions.   
 

1. Relocate existing watermain and provide a new easement and abandon existing easement.  
2. Arborvitae shall be replaced with a more street hardy species to be administratively 

approved by Planning Department. 
3. That both landscaped islands shall be irrigated. 
4. Extend the width of the island near the drive-through to the end of the existing 17-foot 

parking spaces, basically adding 1 or 2 feet to the south of that southern edge of the island 
by the drive-through, to delineate for the driver coming through to direct vehicle away from 
handicapped spaces. 

bittnera
Text Box
I-06



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
The Preliminary Site Plan application was revised to include the Planning Commission conditions, as 
follows:  
 

1. A note was added to Sheet SP-2 indicating there will be a new watermain and easement.  
2. The proposed arborvitae plants were replaced with eastern red cedar (Sheet L-1). 
3. Irrigation will be provided to all new landscape islands (Sheet L-1). 
4. The landscape island to the west of the drive-thru was extended approximately 3 feet to the 

south. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends approval of the revised Preliminary Site Plan and approval of a 
consent judgment to allow for the proposed drive-through addition. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________    _________________________ 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality    Date 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Planning Commission report, prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  
3. Minutes from June 14, 2011 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt) 
4. Minutes from May 24, 2011 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting (excerpt) 
5. Stipulation and Fifth Amendment to the Consent Judgment 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 186 A  Sunset Plaza Shopping Plaza  Sec 10\CC Memo 07 25 2011.doc 



SUNSET PLAZA, 125 E LONG LAKE

5/11/2011

Legend

1: 2,131

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1780355 355Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



SUNSET PLAZA, 125 E LONG LAKE

5/11/2011

Legend

1: 2,131

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1780355 355Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road
(MRR) Maple Road
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O-1) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(R-C) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Brent Savidant 
 
FROM: Zachary Branigan 

DATE: June 10, 2011 
 
RE: Revised CVS Drive-Through, 125 East Long Lake Road 
 
 
We are in receipt of a revised submittal for an amendment to a consent judgment to allow the 
addition of a drive-through window facility at an existing CVS store on Long Lake Road.  Given 
the limited nature of the project, we are providing a more focused review in a memorandum 
format.  The Planning Commission held a detailed discussion with the applicant at its May 24 
meeting and made a series of recommendations prior to postponing action on the request. 
 
The existing CVS store is part of the Sunset Plaza development, and is located at 125 East Long 
Lake Road, on the northeast corner of Long Lake Road and Livernois Road.  The project was 
permitted as part of a consent judgment.  The current zoning, however, is Neighborhood Node 
District, Site Type A, Street Type A (Node M).  In the Neighborhood Node Form-Based District, 
drive-through facilities are permitted in Use Group 6 under special use permit when the site is 
classified as Site Type A, Street Type A.  However, given the status of this project as a part of a 
consent judgment, the Planning Commission is only obligated to make a recommendation to City 
Council with regard to the project. 
 
We have reviewed the revised plan with regard to the concerns raised in our previous review and 
the dialogue between the applicant and Planning Commission. We have reviewed circulation, 
site design, parking, landscaping, screening, and the general provisions of the Ordinance.   
 
Circulation and Stacking 
 
The applicant has revised the proposed drive-through configuration by extending it slightly to 
allow for additional stacking (4 spaces in the north lane, 3 spaces in the south lane).  In doing so, 
the drive-through is now closer the barrier-free spaces, which have not been relocated to the west 
side of the building as recommended.  From our review of the site plan, it appears that there may 
be insufficient space within the existing west sidewalk to accommodate the required barrier free 
ramp were it to extend directly from the end of the parking space (as they are designed in the site 
plan.  However, as the spaces exist now, they are served by a ramp that is adjacent the spaces, 
not extending from the end of the spaces.  This approach may be possible were the spaces 



Revised CVS Drive-Through Request 
June 10, 2011 

 2 

relocated to the west side, although we acknowledge that an island or additional hardscape 
alterations would be necessary to provide such a ramp.  At a minimum, the Planning 
Commission should discuss this issue with the applicant, and we will be prepared to discuss 
potential solutions. 
 
Given that drivers would be forced to cross the oncoming traffic in the maneuvering lane 
heading west from the east entrance towards the main parking area, the applicant has provided 
additional directional striping for the maneuvering lanes to further establish the turning 
movements into the drive-through.  Also, the plan now shows that the proposed striped island 
has been replaced with a curbed landscape island to formally separate the maneuvering lanes 
from the drive-through lanes.  We accept this approach. 
 
Drive-Through Facility Standards 
 
Section 6.10 establishes a series of requirements for all drive-through facilities.  Section 6.10.A 
states that: “Drive-through facilities shall be designed in a manner which promotes pedestrian 
and vehicular safety.” As noted above, we are concerned that the proposed design does not meet 
this criterion.   
 
Further, Section 6.10.B states that: “Single-lane drive-throughs may be located at the side of a 
building. Multiple-lane drive-throughs shall be located in a manner that will be the least visible 
from a public thoroughfare.” As noted above, the proposed facility includes two lanes.  These 
lanes are proposed in a location where they would be most visible to Long Lake Road.  In 
response to discussion with the Planning Commission, the applicant has provided a landscaped 
hedge in the new proposed island separating the traffic lanes from the drive-through lanes.  We 
accept this approach and recognize that it will assist in softening the appearance of the drive-
through from the right-of-way.   
 
Finally, and also as noted above, Section 6.10.C.3, in Table 6.10, requires four stacking spaces 
per lane, which this proposal as designed does not meet.  We are comfortable with fewer spaces, 
given the confined location.  The revised site plan shows four spaces in the north lane and three 
spaces in the south lane.  We are comfortable with this approach. 
 
Landscaping and Screening 
 
The new drive-through facility would point at an existing single-family residential area.  This 
area is already adjacent the shopping center, but would now also be subjected to the cars queuing 
in the drive-through lanes.  There is an existing wall at this location; however, we are concerned 
that the wall does not provide a desirable or sufficient screening alternative given the increased 
intensity.  Table 13.02-B, Landscape Screening Schedule, in Section 13.02.B, requires screening 
alternative 3 (established in able 13.02-A and Figure 13.02-C) and/or a wall between any Use 
Group 6 use and a residential area.  Alternative 3 requires one large evergreen tree for every 10 
linear feet and one narrow evergreen for every 5 linear feet. 
 
The applicant has removed four existing parking spaces from the revised site plan and provided a 
38 foot by 12 foot, 7 inch curbed landscaped island with four blue spruce trees and three arbor 



Revised CVS Drive-Through Request 
June 10, 2011 

 3 

vitaes.  While this doesn’t fully meet the requirements of landscape screening alternative 3 with 
regard to the number of narrow evergreens (8 would be required where 3 are provided), it does 
meet the schedule with regard to large evergreens (4 are proposed where 4 would be required).  
Given the presence of the wall and the limited proposed depth of the island, we are comfortable with 
the proposed arrangement. 
 
Other requirements 
 
An existing water main is located directly beneath the proposed drive-through canopy.  The City 
Engineering Department has stated that the water main must be relocated and provided a new 
easement, and that the existing easement must be abandoned.  While it is our understanding that 
the applicant will respond to this concern, the revised submittal does not show any alteration in 
this regard.  Any recommendation from the Planning Commission should be conditioned on the 
applicant submitting a revised plan addressing this issue. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We do not object to the provision of a drive-through window for the existing CVS store.  Drive-
through pharmacy windows are a new typical element to pharmacy establishments, and have 
been included on new pharmacy facilities throughout Michigan. We are confident that a drive-
through could be a compatible addition to this existing site and could help the existing store 
continue to thrive in Troy.  The site plan has been revised to address many of our concerns.  
However, two outstanding elements remain: 
 
1. The proposed barrier-free spaces should be relocated, preferably to the west side of the 

building, to eliminate potential conflicts with the drive-through.  While we acknowledge 
the applicant’s potential problem with space at this location, we believe alternative 
approaches should be discussed with the Planning Commission. 

2. The existing water main must be relocated and provided a new easement, and that the 
existing easement must be abandoned. 

 
We recommend the Planning Commission discuss these issues with the applicant.  If the 
applicant is willing to make changes to address the issues noted herein, we recommend the 
Planning Commission make an affirmative recommendation, conditioned on the applicant 
revising the plans to address these issues prior to appearing before City Council. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact us with any questions, comments, or concerns. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 14, 2011 
  
 
 

5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 186 A) – Proposed 
Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, Northeast Corner of Long Lake and 
Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), Section 10, Currently Zoned Neighborhood Node 
M District (Controlled by Consent Judgment) 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-06-034 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance, as 
requested for the proposed Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, located 
on the Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), in 
Section 10, within the Neighborhood Node Form-Based Zoning District, 
controlled by Consent Judgment be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Relocate existing watermain and provide a new easement and abandon 
existing easement.  

2. Arborvitae shall be replaced with a more street hardy species to be 
administratively approved by Planning Department. 

3. That both landscaped islands shall be irrigated. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-06-035 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, To amend motion on the floor to add the following condition: 
 

Extend the width of the island near the drive-through to the end of the existing 
17-foot parking spaces, basically adding 1 or 2 feet to the south of that southern 
edge of the island by the drive-through, to delineate for the driver coming through 
to direct vehicle away from handicapped spaces. 
 
Vote on amendment on the floor. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Krent, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
No: Hutson, Schultz 
Absent: Maxwell 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JUNE 14, 2011 
  
 
 

Vote on the original motion as amended. 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-06-034 (as amended) 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance, as 
requested for the proposed Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, located 
on the Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), in 
Section 10, within the Neighborhood Node Form-Based Zoning District, 
controlled by Consent Judgment be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Relocate existing watermain and provide a new easement and abandon 
existing easement.  

2. Arborvitae shall be replaced with a more street hardy species to be 
administratively approved by Planning Department. 

3. That both landscaped islands shall be irrigated. 
4. Extend the width of the island near the drive-through to the end of the existing 

17-foot parking spaces, basically adding 1 or 2 feet to the south of that 
southern edge of the island by the drive-through, to delineate for the driver 
coming through to direct vehicle away from handicapped spaces. 

 

Yes: Edmunds, Krent, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann 
No: Hutson 
Absent: Maxwell 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MAY 24, 2011 
  
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 186 A) – Proposed 

Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, Northeast Corner of Long Lake and 
Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), Section 10, Currently Zoned Neighborhood Node 
M District (Controlled by Consent Judgment) 
 
Resolution #2011-05-031 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To table the item to allow the petitioner to provide revised 
drawings of the drive-through facility, landscaped island and handicapped 
parking spaces removed, and also to provide dwarf trees in the landscaped 
island rather than shrubs to screen the appearance of vehicles. 
 

Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
 
 

SUNSET PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER, LLC, 
a Michigan limited liability company, andSUNSET PLAZA  
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
a Michigan limited partnership, 
as Successor-In-Interest to APOLLO 
INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Michigan 
Corporation, which was previously  
Successor-In-Interest to FUTURE  
PRODUCTS TOOL CORPORATION, a  
Michigan corporation, 
 
   Plaintiffs,    Case No. 70-68045-CZ 
 
vs.        Judge Rudy J. Nichols 
 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation, 
 
   Defendant. 
 
 
John D. Gaber (P45294) 
Williams, Williams, Rattner & Plunkett, P.C. 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
380 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Suite 300 
Birmingham, Michigan  48009 
(248)  642-0333 
 

 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Allan Motzny (P37580) 
City Attorney, City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan  48084 
(248)  524-3259 
 
 

 
 
 

FIFTH AMENDMENT AND SECOND AMENDMENT  
TO RESTATED CONSENT JUDGMENT 



2 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

 
 

FIFTH AMENDMENT AND SECOND AMENDMENT  
TO RESTATED CONSENT JUDGMENT 

 
At a session of said Court, held in the  

Courthouse, City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, 
State of Michigan, on        

 
  HONORABLE         
     CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE 
 
 The parties, through their respective counsel and by themselves, hereby stipulate and 

agree to this Stipulation and Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent 

Judgment (“Fifth Amendment”) as follows: 

 WHEREAS, this action came to be heard upon the Complaint of Plaintiff Sunset Plaza 

Limited Partnership, seeking, inter alia, a Declaratory Judgment as to the constitutionality of the 

zoning ordinance of the Defendant, City of Troy, as it applied to the real property described in 

Exhibit A attached hereto (“Property”); 

 WHEREAS, this matter was resolved through entry of an original Judgment by this Court 

on August 11, 1971, which was amended on August 24, 1978 and November 5, 1985, and 

amended and restated by entry of the Third Amendment to and Restated Consent Judgment on 

December 9, 1991 ("Restated Consent Judgment"), and as further amended by entry of the 

Fourth Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment on December 3, 1996 ("Fourth Amendment").  

The Restated Consent Judgment and the Fourth Amendment shall be collectively referred to as 

the "Consent Judgment"; 

 WHEREAS, Plaintiff Sunset Plaza Limited Partnership transferred and conveyed the 

shopping center portion of the Property (as described in Exhibit A) to Plaintiff Sunset Plaza 

Shopping Center, LLC by Warranty Deed dated June 19, 2001, recorded in Liber 23169, Page 

597, Oakland County Records, and retained the office portion of the Property (as described in 



3 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

Exhibit A).  Sunset Plaza Limited Partnership and Sunset Plaza Shopping Center, LLC shall be 

collectively referred to herein as “Plaintiff.” 

 WHEREAS, Plaintiff has submitted a revised site plan to the City for the purpose of 

adding a prescription drive-through facility to the existing CVS Pharmacy operating on the 

Property, as depicted on the Revised Site Plan attached hereto and incorporated by reference as 

Exhibit B to this Fifth Amendment ("Revised Site Plan"); 

 WHEREAS, in a meeting on June 14, 2011, the Planning Commission for the Defendant, 

City of Troy, recommended approval of the Site Plan Application (City of Troy File No. SP 186 

A), which includes the Revised Site Plan, proposed by CVS Pharmacy, as agent for Plaintiff, to 

facilitate the expansion of the current retail operations of CVS Pharmacy with a drive-through 

facility; 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of Defendant, the City of Troy, approved the Site Plan 

Application and the Revised Site Plan on July ____, 2011, in accordance with its regular 

procedures, and also approved and authorized the entry of this Fifth Amendment on behalf of 

Defendant, the City of Troy, to allow the operation of the pharmacy drive-through in accordance 

with the Revised Site Plan and this Fifth Amendment, and the Parties desire to amend the 

Consent Judgment accordingly. 

 IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. That notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Consent Judgment, the 

Revised Site Plan is hereby approved and deemed to comport with all legal requirements of the 

Consent Judgment, the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance and applicable law; and the Plaintiffs, 

their successors and assigns, hereby have the right, but not the obligation, to construct the 

improvements set forth in the Revised Site Plan, subject to obtaining all applicable building and 

engineering permits required for such construction in the ordinary course. 



4 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

 2. The Revised Site Plan hereby supersedes and replaces that portion of the site plan 

attached to the Consent Judgment (“Original Site Plan”) to which the Revised Site Plan applies.  

The Original Site Plan shall remain in full force and effect as amended by the Revised Site Plan, 

and to the extent there is any inconsistency between the Original Site Plan and the Revised Site 

Plan, the Revised Site Plan shall control. 

 3. The use of the pharmacy drive-through as depicted on the Revised Site Plan shall 

be permitted for so long as the premises on the Property served by the drive-through facilities is 

used and operated as a pharmacy and its ancillary uses, if any. 

 4. That portion of the water main on the Property which is presently located within 

the area where the drive-through facilities are proposed on the Revised Site Plan shall be 

relocated by Plaintiff  (“Water Main Relocation”), at Plaintiff’s expense, to a new location 

outside of the drive-through facilities, and the Parties shall execute and record an amendment to 

that permanent Easement dated February 11, 1985, recorded in Liber 15191, Page 262, Oakland 

County Records, to reflect the relocation of that portion of the water main easement that conflicts 

with the proposed drive-through facilities.  The Water Main Relocation shall be performed in 

accordance with plans approved by the Troy City Engineer, and shall be inspected and approved 

by the City in accordance with its ordinances, rules and regulations. 

 5. The Parties acknowledge that there may be minor modifications to the Revised 

Site Plan that arise during the construction of the pharmacy drive-through facilities, such as 

minor variances in the dimensions and/or location of the window, canopy, pylons, islands, 

parking spaces, landscaped islands, the relocated water main, and/or the easement for the 

relocated water main, and that such minor modifications to the Revised Site Plan, not 

inconsistent with the spirit of this Restated Consent Judgment, may be made without the 

necessity of amending the Consent Judgment or this Fifth Amendment, with the approval of City 



5 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

Staff.  City Staff shall have the discretion to determine whether a modification is "minor" in 

accordance with this paragraph. 

 6. Except as herein expressly amended, the Consent Judgment is hereby ratified and 

confirmed, and continues in full force and effect. This Fifth Amendment shall control to the 

extent there are any conflicts between the Fifth Amendment and the Consent Judgment. 

 7. A certified copy of this Fifth Amendment shall be recorded in the office of the 

Oakland County Register of Deeds with respect to the Property, and the Oakland County 

Register of Deeds is directed to accept the same for recordation. 

 8. This Court shall retain jurisdiction in all matters concerning the development and 

use of the Property and the implementation of the Orders of this Court related to such Property 

and such matters covered by the Consent Judgment and this Fifth Amendment. 

 

             
       ___________________________________ 
        CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE 
 

 
 

[Signatures Follow on Next Pages] 
 



6 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FIFTH AMENDMENT 
AND SECOND AMENDMENT TO RESTATED CONSENT JUDGMENT 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT, CASE NO. 70-68045-CZ 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES HAVE HEREBY READ, UNDERSTAND, AGREE AND 
CONSENT TO THE FOREGOING FIFTH AMENDMENT TO RESTATED CONSENT 
JUDGMENT AND ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS STATED THEREIN.  ALL SUCH 
PARTIES HEREBY REPRESENT THAT THEY HAVE OBTAINED ADVICE OF COUNSEL 
AND ARE CONSENTING TO THIS STIPULATION AND ORDER AMENDING CONSENT 
JUDGMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY. 
 

SUNSET PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER, 
LLC, a Michigan limited liability company 
 
By: Sunset Plaza Limited Partnership,  
 a Michigan limited partnership,  
 Its Member 
 
 
 By:___________________________ 
 Paul T. Chosid, as Trustee of the Paul  
 T. Chosid Revocable Trust U/A/D  
 5/14/01, General Partner 
 
Dated:      
 
SUNSET PLAZA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
a Michigan limited partnership 
 
 
By:________________________________  
 Paul T. Chosid, as Trustee of the Paul  
 T. Chosid Revocable Trust U/A/D  
 5/14/01, General Partner 
 
Dated:____________________ 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________  
John D. Gaber (P45294) 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
 
Dated:___________________ 



7 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

 
SIGNATURE PAGE TO FIFTH AMENDMENT 

AND SECOND AMENDMENT TO RESTATED CONSENT JUDGMENT 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT, CASE NO. 70-68045-CZ 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES HAVE HEREBY READ, UNDERSTAND, AGREE AND 
CONSENT TO THE FOREGOING FIFTH AMENDMENT TO RESTATED CONSENT 
JUDGMENT AND ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS STATED THEREIN.  ALL SUCH 
PARTIES HEREBY REPRESENT THAT THEY HAVE OBTAINED ADVICE OF COUNSEL 
AND ARE CONSENTING TO THIS STIPULATION AND ORDER AMENDING CONSENT 
JUDGMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY. 
 
 
      CITY OF TROY, a Municipal corporation 
 
 
      By:        
       Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      By:       
       Aileen Bittner,  

Deputy Clerk/Acting City Clerk 
 
      Dated:      
 
 
      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      CITY OF TROY CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
 
 
      By:        
       Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
       Allan Motzny (P37580) 

Attorneys for the City of Troy 
       500 W. Big Beaver Road 
       Troy, Michigan  48084 
       (248)  524-3320 
 
      Dated:      



8 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of “Property” 
 

SHOPPING CENTER PARCEL 
Part of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 2 North, RanGe 11East, City of Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, more particularly described as  commencing at the Southwest corner of 
said Section, thence North 01 decree 15 minutes 21 seconds West, 260.00 feet; along the 
centerline of Livernois Road (120 feet wide), also being the West line of said Section 10, 
thence North 88 degrees 50 minutes 57 seconds East, 60.00 feet;  to the Point of Beginning; 
thence North 01 degree 15 minutes 21 seconds West, 460.00 feet; thence North 88 degrees 50 
minutes 57 seconds East, 660.00 feet; along the Southerly line of Sylvan Glen Subdivision #2 
(Liber 132, pages 12, 13 and 14 of Plats, O.C.R.), thence South 01 degree 15 minutes 21 
seconds East, 655.00 feet; along the Westerly line of said Sylvan Glen Subdivision #2, thence 
South 88 degrees 50 minutes 57 seconds West, 460.00 f ee t ;  pa r a l l e l  to the south line of said 
Section 10, thence North 01 degree 15 minutes 21 seconds West, 195.00 feet; thence 
Scuth,

 
88 degrees 50 minutes 57 seconds West 200.00 feet; to the Point of Beginning. 

Tax Item No. 20-10-351-018 
 

 
OFFICE PARCEL 

Part of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 10, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, more particularly described as commencing at the Southwest corner of 
said Section 10; thence North 01 degree 15 minutes 21 seconds West, 260.00 f e e t ;  along 
the centerline of Livernois Road (120 feet wide) and also being the West line of said 
Section 10; thence North 88 degrees 50 minutes 57 seconds East, 60.00 feet; to the Point 
of Beginning; thence North 88 degrees 50 minutes 57 seconds East, 200.00 feet; thence 
South 01 degree 15 minutes 21 seconds East, 195.00 feet; thence South 88 degrees 50 
minutes 57 seconds West, 200.00 feet; thence North 01 degree 15 minutes 21 seconds 
West, 195.00 feet; to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Tax Item No. 20-10-351-019 
 



9 
Fifth Amendment and Second Amendment to Restated Consent Judgment - CC Copy.DOC 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Revised Site Plan 
 
 
 
 

(See Attached) 











 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:          July 22, 2011                    
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
Subject: Proposed Amendment to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System of the Code of 

the City of Troy 
 
 
Section 3.6 (c) of this ordinance currently reads as follows: 
  

The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration shall be the Administrative Officer and 
serve as the secretary of the Retirement System and he shall be the custodian of its money 
and investments. 

 
As you know, we do not have an Assistant City Manager of Finance & Administration.  As such, the 
Employees Retirement System board, as well as city management, recommends the following 
change to this section: 
 

The City Manager or his/her designee shall be the Administrative Officer and serve as 
secretary of the Retirement System and he/she shall be the custodian of its money and 
investments. 

 
As a point of information, I would be naming Monica Irelan, Assistant to the City Manger, as the 
Retirement Board Administrative Officer.  Of course, Ms. Irelan will receive assistance from the City 
Manager’s office, the Finance department, and our consultant, Tom Darling, C.P.A’s and Associates. 
 

 
 

Approved as to form and Legality:_____________________________________ 
     Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 JS/bt\my documents\Szerlag/07.25.11 – To M&CC – Proposed Amendment to Chapter 10 – Employees’ Retirement System of the 
Code of the City of Troy 

bittnera
Text Box
I-07



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 10 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 10, 
Employee Retirement System of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 3.6, shall be amended as follows:  
 
The Board of Trustees is vested with the power and authority to administer, 
manage and operate the retirement system, and to construe and make effective 
the provisions of this Chapter.  The Board shall consist of eight trustees as 
follows: 
 
(C )The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration City Manager or his/ 
her designee shall be the Administrative Officer and serve as secretary of the 
Retirement System and he he/she shall be the custodian of its money and 
investments. 
 
 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 



 

Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 25 day of July, 2011. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Aileen Bittner, Deputy City Clerk 
Acting City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Dennis Wegner, Troy Church of the Nazarene, gave the Invocation. The Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 11, 2011, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
Resolution to Excuse Council Member Beltramini 
 
Resolution #2011-07-151 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Beltramini at the Special City Council Meeting of June 27, 2011 due to being out of the County. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Kerwin 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 
a) A legislative update was received from State Representative Marty Knollenberg, District 

41. 
b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a Service 

Commendation to Rod Bovensiep. 
c) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a Service 

Commendation to Keith Lenderman.  
d) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a Service 

Commendation to Joe LaGarde. 
e) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a Service 

Commendation to Sam Lamerato. 
f) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented a Public Sector Fleet 

Manager of the Year Award from Government Fleet Magazine to Sam Lamerato. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

g) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Louise Schilling presented the Top 100 Best Elite 
Fleet in North America Award to the City of Troy Fleet Division 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Rezoning Application (File Number Z 738) – East Side of Stephenson, North of 

Fourteen Mile (466 Stephenson Highway), Section 35 – From RC Research Center 
to OM Office Mixed Use 

 
Mayor Schilling OPENED the Public Hearing. 
Mayor Schilling CLOSED the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the Richard Peters. 
 
Resolution #2011-07-152 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from RC to OM, File Number Z-738, as 
demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy and as 
illustrated in the attached Plat of Survey. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The proposed rezoning from RC to OM is hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-07-153 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Fleming, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

Vote on Resolution to Reduce Public Comment, Rule #16 – Members of the Public & 
Visitors 
 
Resolution #2011-07-154 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REDUCES Public Comment, Council Rule #16, 
Members of the Public & Visitors, from five minutes to three minutes at the request of the Chair 
and by majority vote of City Council members elect. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak, Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Chamberlain, Craig Discussed underground sprinkler system restriction ordinance. 
Henderson, Dave Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Daniels, Janice Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Johnson, Carmen Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Reinhardt , Marvin  Discussed various topics. 
Beck, Paul Discussed various topics. 
Peters, Richard Discussed support of millage increase. 
Orlowski, Marty Discussed support of millage increase on behalf of the Troy Chamber 

of Commerce. 
Savage, James Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Staeger, Gerard Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Kulesza, Christopher Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Bloomingdale, Bruce Discussed support of millage increase 
Eckhout, Fred Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Burke, Thomas Discussed opposition to millage increase. 
Martin, Susan S. Discussed update on SaveTroy.org. 
Hodorek, Ellen Discussed support of millage increase. 
Witt, John Discussed opposition to millage increase. 

 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, Local 

Development Finance Authority 
 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

a) Mayoral Appointments: 
 
Motion to Separate the Vote for the Mayoral Appointments to Board and Committees: 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, Local Development Finance Authority 
 
Resolution #2011-07-155 
Moved by Howrylak 
Moved by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That the vote of the Mayor Appointments to the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) be SEPARATED. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #2011-07-156 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor (7-Regular) – 3 Year Term 
 
James Campbell Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  
Robert Swartz Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  
Bruce Wilberding Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  
Ramzi Dalloo Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  
A. Allen Kneale Term Expires 04/30/2013 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #2011-07-157 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5-Regular) – Staggered 4 Year Term 
 
Maureen Donohue Krauss Oakland County Designee 
 
John Sharp Term Expires 06/30/2014 
  
Nick Vitale Term Expires 06/30/2015 
  
Robin Beltramini Term Expires 06/30/2015 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session  
 
Resolution #2011-07-158 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (c) Strategy for Labor Negotiations, and MCL15.268 (a) City Attorney Evaluation. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-4 Application Regarding Liquor License Transfer of Ownership for Hollywood Super 

Market, LLC 
 
Resolution #2011-07-159 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
(a) Transfer of Ownership 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

Liquor License Applicant : Hollywood Super Market No. 3, LLC 

Type of License Requested : Transfer Ownership of 2010 SDD and SDM licensed business 
from Hollywood Super Market, Inc. 

Located at : 2670 W. Maple Road, Troy, MI  48084, Oakland County 
MLCC Request # : 578974 

 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-5 Ratification of 2008-2013 Contract Extension to 2015, and Approval of Early 

Retirement Incentive Program – Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) 
 
Resolution #2011-07-160 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, A tentative agreement has been reached between the City of Troy and TPOA 
extending the 2008-2013 contract to June 30, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2011, 2012; 2013; 
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, Approximately 14 Troy Police Officers Association (TPOA) members will meet the 
eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of June 30, 2011; and 14 Troy Police 
Officers Association (TPOA) members are within five years of meeting the eligibility criteria for 
retirement from City employment as of June 30, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Early Retirement Incentive Program has been reviewed and is 
recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create 
position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce costs, 
reorganize and restructure operations; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Early Retirement Incentive Program to be offered to the Troy 
Police Officers Association (TPOA) members who will be eligible to retire, or are within five 
years of eligibility, on or before June 30, 2011, provided that the program is economically 
beneficial to the City of Troy; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Early Retirement Incentive Program MAY BE offered 
during a minimum 45-day window of opportunity, with said incentive being the option of a lump 
sum payment of $1,000 for each full year of retirement service as of June 30, 2011 or the 
conversion from a DC pension plan to a DB pension plan; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Early Retirement Cash Incentive Program 
SHALL BE OBTAINED from funds made available in the Department’s budget, and funding for 
the Early Retirement DC to DB Program SHALL BE obtained from the funds contained in the 
members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees in the Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution 
retirement plans desiring to participate in the Early Retirement Incentive Program MUST FILE 
written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of their requested retirement date 
which shall be no later than November 15, 2011 with the Employees’ Retirement System on the 
appropriate form; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Early Retirement Incentive pay SHALL NOT 
be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the Defined Benefit 
Plan. Contributions WILL BE made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan or Defined 
Benefit Plan by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Early Retirement Incentive Program with represented 
Employees Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a two-year extension to the 2008-2013 collective bargaining 
agreement between the City of Troy and TPOA for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 
2015 as presented is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the City of Troy, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

MOTION CARRED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:37 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:45 PM. 
 
I-6 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – June 15, 2011 
 
Resolution #2011-07-161 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That a STOP sign be installed on the Provincial northbound approach to 
Rothwell. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-7 Application Regarding Transfer of Stock for Mr. Pizza, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2011-07-162 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
(a) Request To Transfer Stock 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : Mr. Pizza, Inc. 

Type of License Requested : 
Transfer All Stock Interest in 2010 SDD and SDM Licensed 
Business, wherein Amira Shemami Transfers 10,000 shares of 
stock to new stockholder, Najib Jr. Najib Shemami. 

Located at : 4973 Livernois, Troy, MI  48098, Oakland County 
MLCC Request # : 572153 

 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-8 Application Regarding New Wholesale Liquor Licenses for Flats Distributing, LLC 
 
Resolution #2011-07-163 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
(a) New Wholesale Licenses 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : Flats Distributing, LLC 

Type of License Requested : New Outstate Seller of Beer License, Outstate Seller of Mixed 
Spirit Drinks License, and Outstate Seller of Wine License 

Located at : 201 W. Big Beaver Road, Suite 500, Troy, MI  48084, 
Oakland County 

MLCC Request # : 611857 
 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) J-4a, J-4f, and J-4e, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of June 20, 2011 
b. Special City Council Meeting of June 21, 2011  
c. Special City Council Meeting of June 27, 2011 

 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals - Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
(SEMCOG) 

 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay membership dues to the Southeast Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG) in the amount of $9,841.00, which covers the time period 
of July 15, 2011 to July 15, 2012. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – MITN Cooperative 

Premium Laser Compatible Ink and Toner Cartridges 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-4c 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, On November 8, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a contract to purchase premium 
laser compatible ink and toner cartridges with an option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) 
year periods to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Preferred Toner Solutions of Canton, 
MI (Resolution #2010-11-247-J-4a);  
 
WHEREAS, Preferred Toner Solutions has agreed to exercise the first one-year option to renew and 
the City of Ann Arbor has administratively approved the contract under the same pricing structure, 
terms, and conditions for participating members of the MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network) Cooperative; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the first one-
year option to renew the contract with Preferred Toner Solutions to provide premium laser compatible 
ink and toner cartridges under the same pricing, terms, and conditions expiring July 6, 2012. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 11-1 – Beach 

Road Pavement Rehabilitation 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That contract No. 11-1, Beach Road Pavement Rehabilitation, be AWARDED to 
Cadillac Asphalt, LLC, 4751 White Lake Road, Clarkston, MI 48346 for their low total bid 
amount of $1,760,391.88. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
J-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #31 & 32 – 
Sidwell #88-20-02-427-008 & -009 

 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase Realty for Public Purposes between Rama Rao 
Cherukuri and Ramadevi Cherukuri, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-008 & -
009, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard is APPROVED in the amount of $31,850, plus closing 
costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Engineering Department is hereby AUTHORIZED to 
expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

J-6 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed from Orion Homes, Inc. – Sidwell #88-
20-04-276-043 

 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed from Orion Homes, 
Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-04-276-043; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-7 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Resurfacing of Dequindre Road, 

from South Boulevard to Auburn Road – Project No. 11.103.6 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the resurfacing of Dequindre Road, from South 
Boulevard to Auburn Road is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of $38,500 to the City of 
Troy with the actual local match to be determined upon completion of State financial audits, 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
J-8 Approval of Cost Participation Agreement for the Resurfacing of Crooks Road, 

from Banmoor to Fountain – Project No. 11.102.6 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the resurfacing of Crooks Road, from Banmoor to 
Fountain is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost of $129,000 to the City of Troy with the 
actual local match to be determined upon completion of State financial audits, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
J-9 Margaret and Robert Black v City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Margaret Black and Robert 
Black v. City of Troy (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 11-119571-NO).  Furthermore, 
the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any 
necessary expert witnesses to adequately represent the City. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

J-10 Oakland County’s Urban County Community Development Block Grant 
Cooperation Agreement for Program Years 2012-2014 

 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-10 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has been participating in Oakland County’s Urban County 
Community Development Block Grant Program since 1982; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy receives approximately $171,966 in Oakland County Community 
Development Block funds each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Currently, Oakland County handles the majority of the federal paperwork involved 
in administering the Community Development Block Grant Program, helping to maximize the 
benefit of each dollar received at the local level; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy CONTINUE its participation in Oakland 
County’s Urban County Community Development Block Grant Program for program years 
2012, 2013 and 2014, which shall be automatically renewed in successive three-year 
qualification periods of time, or until such time that it is in the best interest of the City of Troy to 
terminate the Cooperative Agreement. 
 
J-11 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – DBT Troy Properties, LLC - 

Sidwell #88-20-34-152-011 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the water main easement from DBT 
Troy Properties, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-34-152-011; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-12 CitiMortgage, Inc. et. al. v. RBS Citizens, City of Troy, et. All-7. 
 
Resolution #2011-07-164-J-12 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney’s Office is hereby DIRECTED to defend the City of Troy in 
the CITIMORTGAGE, INC. v. CITY OF TROY (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 11-
119801 CH), Furthermore, the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and fees 
in the defense of the action.   
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
Resolution #2011-07-165 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Agenda Items J-4a, J-4e, and J-4f as 
printed. 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Sidewalk 

Replacement and Installation Program 
 
WHEREAS, On January 10, 2011, Troy City Council awarded a contract to complete the 
Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program for FY 2010/11 with options to renew for two 
additional one-year periods to the low total bidder, Rotondo Construction Company of 
Farmington Hills, MI, (Resolution #2011-01-005-J4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, Rotondo Construction Company has agreed to exercise the first of two one-year 
options to renew the contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
first one-year option to renew the contract with Rotondo Construction Company to provide 
sidewalk replacement and installation for the 2011/12 construction season under the same 
prices, terms, and conditions as contained in the bid tabulation opened November 23, 2010, the 
cost of which shall not to exceed budgetary limitations to expire June 30, 2012.  
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Lloyd A. Stage Nature 

Center Boardwalk Replacement Project 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all bid proposals for ITB-COT 11-12, the 
Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center Boardwalk replacement project opened June 8, 2011, and that 
the scope of the project be changed to allow for completion by City personnel utilizing an 
informal quote process and standard purchasing procedures for the procurement of necessary 
building materials 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Quarterly 

Newsletter – Troy Today 
 
WHEREAS, On July 12, 2010, Troy City Council approved a one-year contract to provide 
printing services for the Troy Today, Quarterly Newsletter with two, one (1) year options to 
renew to Grand Blanc Printing Co, Inc. of Grand Blanc, MI, the vendor with the lowest bid and 
highest weighted final score, as a result of a best value process (Resolution # 2010-07-157-I-
4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Grand Blanc Printing Co, Inc. has agreed to exercise the first one-year option to 
renew the contract for the printing of the 2011/2012 Troy Today under the same pricing 
structure, terms, and conditions;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the first 
one-year option to renew the contract for the 2011/2012 printing and distribution of the Troy 
Today, Quarterly Newsletter with Grand Blanc Printing Co. Inc. of Grand Blanc, MI, for an 
estimated total cost of $39,008.00, at unit prices as originally bid on May 24, 2010, plus the 
actual cost of bulk rate postage and additional charges if needed not to exceed 10% of the 
original contract amount or $3,900.00, with all other contract requirements the same to expire 
July 1, 2012.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 
 
M. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

M-1   Council Comments 
 
Mayor Schilling discussed the restrictions for underground sprinkler systems. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin discussed the public engagement strategies, including the State of the 
City Address and the Community-Wide Blood Drive. 
 
Council Member Fleming inquired about the next budget update. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin discussed the impact on reducing healthcare benefits for persons in 
public safety (Fire and Police). 
 
Council Member Beltramini discussed publicizing employee salaries on the City website.   
 
Council Member Howrylak discussed publishing the “before and after” employee concessions 
salary information on the City website.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-07-166 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to take action on an item that does not appear on the 
Agenda. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 16 - 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Motion to Amend the City Council Agenda for July 25, 2011 
 
Resolution #2011-07-167 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the City Council Agenda for the Meeting 
on July 25, 2011 to move the Closed Session to 6:30 PM, prior to the start of the Regular 
Meeting for the purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager, pursuant to MCL 
15.268 (a). 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

N. REPORTS: 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Traffic Committee-Final-March 16, 2011 
b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final-April 13, 2011 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Draft-May 11, 2011 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-May 17, 2011 
e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Study-Draft-May 17, 2011 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Draft-June 8, 2011 
g) Planning Commission-Draft-June 14, 2011 
h) Planning Commission-Final-June 14, 2011 

Noted and Filed 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) City Council Expense Report  - July, 2011 

Noted and Filed 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 

Noted and Filed 
 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Troy Chamber of Commerce – Resolution of Support for Troy Public Library Millage 

Proposal August 2, 2011 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT July 11, 2011 
 

- 17 - 

N-5  Smart Meters / Radio Frequencies 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-6  Laja, LLC v City of Troy 

Noted and Filed 
 

N-7  2011 Second Quarter Litigation Report 
Noted and Filed 

 

O. STUDY ITEMS: 
O-1  No Study Items Presented 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  Strategy for Labor Negotiations and City Attorney Evaluation 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:27 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:32 PM. 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:39 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner 
Acting City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
July 13, 2011 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Concrete Pavement Repair 

Program  
 
 
Background 
On July 7, 2011, bids were received to complete the Concrete Pavement Repair Program for fiscal year 
2011/12 with an option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year periods.  (221) vendors were notified of the 
bid opportunity via the MITN system with eight (8) bid responses received, as well as one (1) statement of no 
bid.  Dilisio Contracting Inc of Clinton Township, MI, was the low total bidder for Proposals A- local roads, B- 
major roads and C- tri-party repair. Moving this work forward improves public safety and reduces the City’s 
liability.  Additional locations may be added based on the scope of work up to, but not exceeding amounts 
budgeted. 
   
ITB-COT 11-15 to complete the Concrete Pavement Repair Program was competitively bid as required by City 
Charter and Code. The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of properly executed 
contracts and bid documents, including bonds with two-year maintenance, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to complete the Concrete Pavement Repair Program for 
FY2011/12 to the low total bidder, Dilisio Contracting Inc of Clinton Township, MI for an estimated total cost of 
$2,136,250.00 for proposal A, $910,960.00 for proposal B and $232,110.00 for proposal C at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation with all work not to exceed budgetary limitations.  
 
Fund Availability 
Funds are available in the 2011/12 capital budget under Public Works Major and Local Roads Concrete Slab 
Replacement and the Tri-Party Concrete Pavement Repair accounts.   
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Concrete Pavement Repair ITB-COT 11-15 07.11.doc 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-15
Opening Date -- 07/07/11 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 7/13/11 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

sl

VENDOR NAME: ** Dilisio Hard Rock Fiore Florence Cement
 Contracting Inc. Concrete, Inc. Enterprises, LLC Company

Ck Number 9094906211 530622609-2 362775 000325216
Ck Amount 30,000.00$       30,000.00$       30,000.00$             30,000.00$          

Proposal A:  Local Road Maintenance Section 5, 14, 19, 20, 30, 36 and scattered locations
FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

9" Non-reinforced- 1,000 S.Y. $37.25 $33.00 $33.50 $40.00

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
8" Non-reinforced- 5,000 S.Y. $33.40 $32.00 $31.50 $36.75

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete
7" Non-reinforced- 64,000 SY $29.55 $30.00 $29.50 $34.75

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway 6" Non-reinforced (Locations not ….. 100 S.F. $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $5.00

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 100 S.F. $4.00 $3.50 $3.50 $5.00

6 Remove Concrete and rplc with topsoil/seed 300 S.F. $1.00 $0.50 $1.25 $2.00

7 Structure Cover, (Adjustment) 20 each $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $200.00

8 Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth (Reconst) 10 L.F. $150.00 $150.00 $100.00 $200.00

9 Misc. Base Repair per CY to excavate/replace
with 21AA Limestone, compacted in place 2,600 C.Y. $9.00 $1.00 $15.30 $13.50

10 Installation of 6" edge drain 200 L.F. $7.00 $6.00 $7.50 $8.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb & Gutter 200 L.F. $18.00 $18.00 $20.00 $25.00
12 Sidewalk Ramp, ADA, Modified w/Inserts 6,000 S.F. $1.00 $6.00 $6.50 $7.50
13 Sidewalk Ramp, Detectable Warning, Retrofit, … 100 S.F. $8.00 $8.00 $20.00 $25.00
14 Restoration Included Included Included Included Included
15 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $2,136,250.00 $2,162,600.00 $2,170,405.00 $2,544,550.00

Proposal B: Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road and Scattered Locations
FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

9" Non-reinforced- 6 Sac 22,000 SY $39.65 $42.00 $41.75 $44.80

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
8" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $39.65 $36.00 $35.97 $44.00

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete
7" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $39.65 $32.00 $33.25 $43.00

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway 6" Non-reinforced (Locations not ….. 200 S.F. $4.00 $5.00 $4.00 $5.00

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 100 S.F. $4.00 $4.00 $3.50 $5.00

6 Remove Concrete and rplc with topsoil/seed 100 S.F. $3.00 $1.25 $1.25 $2.00

7 Structure Cover, (Adjustment) 5 each $200.00 $150.00 $200.00 $200.00

8 Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth (Reconst) 10 L.F. $200.00 $150.00 $125.00 $200.00

9 Misc. Base Repair per CY to excavate/replace
with 21AA Limestone, compacted in place 600 C.Y. $18.00 $12.00 $15.30 $13.50

10 Installation of 6" edge drain 100 L.F. $7.00 $6.00 $7.50 $8.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb & Gutter 100 L.F. $20.00 $18.00 $20.00 $25.00
12 Sidewalk Ramp, ADA, Modified w/Inserts 500 S.F. $8.00 $6.00 $6.50 $7.50
13 Sidewalk Ramp, Detectable Warning, Retrofit, … 100 S.F. $8.00 $8.00 $15.00 $25.00
14 Restoration Included Included Included Included Included

15 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B $910,960.00 $954,775.00 $952,549.00 $1,025,350.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-15
Opening Date -- 07/07/11 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 07/13/11 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: ** Dilisio Hard Rock Fiore Florence Cement
Contracting Inc Concrete, Inc. Enterprises, LLC Company

Proposal C: Tri Party Concrete Repair - Big Beaver, John R, Crooks and Scattered Locations
FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

10" Non-reinforced- 2,000 SY $40.65 $45.00 $45.00 $55.50
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

9" Non-reinforced- 3,000 S.Y. $39.65 $43.00 $43.00 $48.75
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

8" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $39.65 $46.00 $39.75 $44.00
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete

7" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $39.65 $44.00 $36.50 $43.00

Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
5 Driveway 6" Non-reinforced (Locations not ….. 50 S.F. $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $5.00

Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
6 4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 50 S.F. $4.00 $4.00 $4.00 $5.00

7 Remove Concrete and rplc with topsoil/seed 100 S.F. $3.00 $1.25 $2.50 $2.00

8 Structure Cover, (Adjustment) 2 each $200.00 $150.00 $150.00 $200.00

9 Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth (Reconst) 10 L.F. $200.00 $150.00 $125.00 $200.00
Misc. Base Repair per CY to excavate/replace

10 with 21AA Limestone, compacted in place 300 C.Y. $18.00 $12.00 $15.30 $13.50
11 Installation of 6" edge drain 100 L.F. $7.00 $6.00 $7.50 $8.00
12 Remove and Replace Curb & Gutter 100 L.F. $20.00 $18.00 $20.00 $25.00
13 Sidewalk Ramp, ADA, Modified w/Inserts 500 S.F. $8.00 $6.00 $7.50 $7.50

14 Sidewalk Ramp, Detectable Warning, Retrofit, … 100 S.F. $8.00 $8.00 $15.00 $25.00
15 Restoration Included Included Included Included Included
16 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $232,110.00 $249,125.00 $249,040.00 $291,350.00

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Monthly Bi-weekly Every two weeks Bi-weekly

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 8AM-5PM 8AM-8PM M-Sat 7AM-5PM Michael Pittiglio
Phone (586) 405-4578 (734) 641-3333 (586) 915-0417 (810) 560-4141

AWARD                       100% of Contract X X X X
                                                   Partial Contract: Proposal A X X

Proposal B X X
Proposal C X X

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Monthly Bi-weekly Every 2 weeks Bi-weekly

WARRANTY: 1 year As stated in contract Maintenance Bond 1 yr Maint Bond

ALL OR NONE-AWARD Y or N N N N N

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Y Y Y Y

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Y Y Y Y

FORMS:                 Legal Staus of Bidder Y or N Y Y Y Y
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Y Y Y Y

NO BID:  Carlo Construction, Inc. **BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

ATTEST:     PROPOSAL: City of Troy Concrete Pavement Repair Program for Local and Major
Marina Basta-Farouk     Roads with an Option to Renew for Two (2) Additional One Year Periods 
Tom Rosewarne
Diane Fisher
Julie Hamilton Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
G: ITB-COT 11-15 Concrete Pavement Repair Purchasing Director

BY JUNE 30th OF ANY CONTRACT YEAR



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-15
Opening Date -- 07/07/11 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 7/13/11 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

sl

VENDOR NAME: Tony Angelo Dominic Gaglio Lacaria Concrete/ Major Cement
 Cement Construction Construction, Inc. Sand A Construction Company

Ck Number 4313100100 18382662 18384356 & 530297 000331667
Ck Amount 30,000.00$        30,000.00$        30,000.00$       30,000.00$         

Proposal A:  Local Road Maintenance Section 5, 14, 19, 20, 30, 36 and scattered locations
FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

9" Non-reinforced- 1,000 S.Y. $43.00 $37.00 $34.50 No Bid

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
8" Non-reinforced- 5,000 S.Y. $39.00 $36.50 $33.50 No Bid

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete
7" Non-reinforced- 64,000 SY $38.50 $36.80 $31.50 No Bid

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway 6" Non-reinforced (Locations not ….. 100 S.F. $6.50 $4.00 $3.10 No Bid

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 100 S.F. $6.00 $3.85 $2.75 No Bid

6 Remove Concrete and rplc with topsoil/seed 300 S.F. $1.50 $2.00 $3.00 No Bid

7 Structure Cover, (Adjustment) 20 each $150.00 $210.00 $175.00 No Bid

8 Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth (Reconst) 10 L.F. $150.00 $150.00 $175.00 No Bid

9 Misc. Base Repair per CY to excavate/replace
with 21AA Limestone, compacted in place 2,600 C.Y. $31.00 $12.00 $10.00 No Bid

10 Installation of 6" edge drain 200 L.F. $11.00 $15.00 $6.00 No Bid

11 Remove and Replace Curb & Gutter 200 L.F. $25.00 $25.00 $18.00 No Bid

12 Sidewalk Ramp, ADA, Modified w/Inserts 6,000 S.F. $9.00 $6.00 $4.75 No Bid

13 Sidewalk Ramp, Detectable Warning, Retrofit, … 100 S.F. $10.00 $10.00 $20.00 No Bid

14 Restoration Included Included Included Included Included
15 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal A $2,851,000.00 $2,657,985.00 $2,286,035.00 No Bid

Amount Corrected

Proposal B: Major Road Maintenance - Rochester Road and Scattered Locations
FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

9" Non-reinforced- 6 Sac 22,000 SY $44.00 $45.50 No Bid $42.20

2 Remove & Replace with Concrete
8" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $40.00 $42.00 No Bid $32.00

3 Remove & Replace with Concrete
7" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $38.00 $41.00 No Bid $31.00

4 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
Driveway 6" Non-reinforced (Locations not ….. 200 S.F. $6.50 $4.15 No Bid $4.00

5 Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 100 S.F. $6.00 $3.15 No Bid $4.00

6 Remove Concrete and rplc with topsoil/seed 100 S.F. $1.50 $2.50 No Bid $1.70

7 Structure Cover, (Adjustment) 5 each $150.00 $300.00 No Bid $1,000.00

8 Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth (Reconst) 10 L.F. $150.00 $200.00 No Bid $250.00

9 Misc. Base Repair per CY to excavate/replace
with 21AA Limestone, compacted in place 600 C.Y. $31.00 $22.00 No Bid $5.00

10 Installation of 6" edge drain 100 L.F. $11.00 $18.00 No Bid $7.00
11 Remove and Replace Curb & Gutter 100 L.F. $25.00 $28.00 No Bid $21.00
12 Sidewalk Ramp, ADA, Modified w/Inserts 500 S.F. $9.00 $7.50 No Bid $7.00
13 Sidewalk Ramp, Detectable Warning, Retrofit, … 100 S.F. $10.00 $10.00 No Bid $7.00
14 Restoration Included Included Included Included Included

15 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal B $1,015,600.00 $1,045,045.00 No Bid $959,870.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-15
Opening Date -- 07/07/11 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 07/13/11 CONCRETE PAVEMENT REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: Tony Angelo Dominic Gaglio Lacaria Concrete Major Cement
Cement Construction Construction, Inc. Sand A Constrution Company

Proposal C: Tri Party Concrete Repair - Big Beaver, John R, Crooks and Scattered Locations
FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012 FY2011/2012

NO. DESCRIPTION EST. QTY.  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE  UNIT PRICE
1 Remove & Replace with Concrete

10" Non-reinforced- 2,000 SY $52.50 No Bid No Bid $59.00
2 Remove & Replace with Concrete

9" Non-reinforced- 3,000 S.Y. $42.00 No Bid No Bid $58.00
3 Remove & Replace with Concrete

8" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $41.00 No Bid No Bid $37.00
4 Remove & Replace with Concrete

7" Non-reinforced- 200 S.Y. $37.00 No Bid No Bid $32.00

Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
5 Driveway 6" Non-reinforced (Locations not ….. 50 S.F. $6.50 No Bid No Bid $4.00

Remove & Replace with Concrete Sidewalk/
6 4" Non-reinforced (Locations not specified) 50 S.F. $6.00 No Bid No Bid $4.00

7 Remove Concrete and rplc with topsoil/seed 100 S.F. $1.50 No Bid No Bid $1.50

8 Structure Cover, (Adjustment) 2 each $150.00 No Bid No Bid $1,000.00

9 Structure Cover, Adj, Add Depth (Reconst) 10 L.F. $150.00 No Bid No Bid $750.00
Misc. Base Repair per CY to excavate/replace

10 with 21AA Limestone, compacted in place 300 C.Y. $31.00 No Bid No Bid $9.00
11 Installation of 6" edge drain 100 L.F. $11.00 No Bid No Bid $7.00
12 Remove and Replace Curb & Gutter 100 L.F. $25.00 No Bid No Bid $27.00
13 Sidewalk Ramp, ADA, Modified w/Inserts 500 S.F. $9.00 No Bid No Bid $10.00

14 Sidewalk Ramp, Detectable Warning, Retrofit, … 100 S.F. $10.00 No Bid No Bid $8.00
15 Restoration Included Included Included Included Included
16 Traffic Maintenance Included Included Included Included Included

Estimated Total Cost – Proposal C $267,575.00 No Bid No Bid $327,750.00

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Bi-weekly Every two weeks Every 30 Days Bi-weekly

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Oper. 7AM-7PM 7AM-3:30PM 7AM-6PM 7AM-5PM
Phone (248) 249-8705 (734) 216-2051 (313) 218-6834 (248) 388-1168

AWARD                       100% of Contract X X
                                                   Partial Contract: Proposal A X X

Proposal B X
Proposal C X

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

INSURANCE:                      Can Meet XX XX XX XX
                                         Cannot Meet

PAYMENT TERMS: Bi-weekly 2 Weeks Blank Bi-weekly

WARRANTY: 1 year 1 year Blank Per Contract

ALL OR NONE-AWARD Y or N N N N N

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEGEMENT: Y or N Y Y Y Y

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N N Y Y Y

FORMS:                 Legal Staus of Bidder Y or N Y Y Y Y
Non-Collusion Affidavit Y or N Y Y Y Y

PROPOSAL: City of Troy Concrete Pavement Repair Program for Local and Major
Roads with an Option to Renew for Two (2) Additional One Year Periods 

G: ITB-COT 11-15 Concrete Pavement Repair

BY JUNE 30th OF ANY CONTRACT YEAR



1 of 2  

CITY OF TROY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

AUGUST 2011 to NOVEMBER 2011 
07/05/2011 

 
1. ROAD REHABILITATION – BEACH ROAD, WATTLES TO SOUTH BOULEVARD 

Pavement rehabilitation on three (3) miles of Beach Road from Wattles to South Boulevard is necessary 
due to the pavement’s deteriorated condition.  Full depth reclamation (FDR) was the rehabilitation method 
chosen after considering several other more conventional options.  FDR is a process where a set depth of 
asphalt pavement and a portion of the underlying granular base material is uniformly pulverized and 
blended to provide an upgraded, homogeneous base material.  The blended material it is then graded, 
shaped, and compacted to design parameters.  Once completed, a final asphalt pavement surface is placed 
over the upgraded homogeneous base material to complete the pavement rehabilitation process.   
 
FDR significantly reduces the project’s environmental impact and energy (oil) consumption compared to 
other conventional pavement rehabilitation methods.  FDR is consistent with many of the tenants of “Green 
Construction” such as sustainability, reuse, conservation of non-renewable natural resources, preservation 
of the environment, and reduction in pollution & landfill requirements.  Funding for this project is from the 
Major Roads fund.  Construction is anticipated to start in August and be open to traffic by late November.  
Restoration and cleanup, as necessary, will take place in the spring of 2012. 

 

2. ROAD REPAIRS – SECTION 35 (14 MILE ROAD & STEPHENSON HIGHWAY AREA) 
The water mains were replaced on: Sheffield, Kenyon, Lyons, Redwood, Burtman, Grant, Wacon, Jamaica, 
Key West and Hendrickson in 2010.  The existing asphalt over concrete roads in the project area will be 
milled (ground off) and then an asphalt pavement overlay will be placed as the new surface.  Funding for 
this project is a continuation of the water main replacement project.  Water funds are used to repair the 
existing roads due to damage caused by the water main construction.  Construction is anticipated to start in 
mid September and be complete by the end of November.  Restoration and cleanup, as necessary, will take 
place in the spring of 2012. 
 

3. ROAD REHABILITATION – SECTION 8 (NORTHFIELD HILLS CONDOMINIUMS) 
Brentwood, Bayside, Buckingham and Breeze Hill, local roads in the Northfield Hills Condominiums area, 
will be milled (ground off) and then an asphalt pavement overlay will be placed as the new surface.  The 
project will also include removal and replacement of deteriorated concrete pavement and concrete curb and 
gutter where required.  Sidewalk ramps and pedestrian crossings will be upgraded to meet current 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.  Funding for this project is from the Local Roads fund.  
Construction is anticipated to start in July and be complete by mid September. 
 

4. ROAD REHABILIATION – ROCHESTER ROAD, CHOPIN TO LARCHWOOD 
Rochester Road, from Chopin to Larchwood, will be milled (ground off) and then an asphalt pavement 
overlay will be placed as the new surface.  The project will also include removal and replacement of 
deteriorated concrete pavement and concrete curb and gutter where required.  Sidewalk ramps and 
pedestrian crossings will be upgraded to meet current Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.  
Funding for this project is from the Major Roads fund.  Construction is anticipated to start in September and 
be complete by late November. 
 

5. CONCRETE SLAB REPLACEMENT – LOCAL ROADS, SECTIONS 36, 30 and 19 
The City of Troy is responsible for the maintenance of approximately 265 miles of local roads.  The 
Department of Public Works (DPW) coordinates the local road concrete slab replacement program.  
Concrete slab replacement is a normal maintenance activity that removes and replaces spot sections of 
failed concrete pavement.  Funds are budgeted in the city’s Local Road fund to complete slab replacements 
on local roads at target locations within the city every year.  Work is anticipated to start in late August and 
run through the fall.  Work will be stopped for the winter and then started back up again in the spring of 
2012 and be complete by June 30, 2012.   
 

6. CONCRETE SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT – LOCAL ROADS, SECTIONS 23, 27 and 35 
The Department of Public Works (DPW) is responsible for the sidewalk replacement program.  The City is 
divided into 12 areas for residential sidewalk replacements.  These areas are reviewed annually and a 
sidewalk replacement list is prepared.  Not all sidewalks in any one area are replaced, only those sections 
of sidewalk that do not meet current requirements.  Americans with Disabilities Act compliant facilities are 
also constructed with this program.  Work is anticipated to start in late July and run through the fall.  Work 



2 of 2  

will be stopped for the winter and then started back up again in the spring of 2012 and be complete by June 
30, 2012.   
 

7. WIDENING AND RECONSTRUCTION – CROOKS ROAD, 14 MILE TO EQUITY (RCOC) 
This project is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC).  The project will 
reconstruct the existing road and add a center left turn lane.  Also included is the replacement of a 20-inch 
water main between 14 Mile and Elmwood Avenue, upgrading traffic signals at Meijer Drive and Elmwood 
Avenue as well as upgrading pedestrian crossings to meet current ADA requirements.  Federal funds will be 
used to pay for approximately 80% of the project cost, with the remainder of the funding coming from the 
Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority (SOCWA) and the City of Clawson.  There are no City of 
Troy funds involved in this project.  Construction started in May and Crooks is anticipated to be fully open to 
traffic by mid-October.  Restoration and cleanup, as necessary, will take place in the spring of 2012. 
 

8. ROAD REHABILITATION – CROOKS ROAD, BANMOOR TO FOUNTAIN (RCOC) 
This project is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC).  The work will 
include milling of the existing pavement (grinding off) and then placing an asphalt pavement overlay to 
provide a new surface.  The project will also include removal and replacement of concrete curb and gutter 
where required.  Sidewalk ramps and pedestrian crossings will be upgraded to meet current Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.   Federal funds will be used to pay for approximately 80% of the project 
cost, with the remainder of the funding shared by the RCOC and Troy.  Troy’s share of this project is from 
the Major Roads fund.  Construction is anticipated to start in September and be fully open to traffic by late 
November.  Restoration and cleanup, as necessary, will take place in the spring of 2012. 
 

9. ROAD REHABILITATION – DEQUINDRE ROAD, SOUTH BOULEVARD TO AUBURN (RCOC) 
This project is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC).  The work will 
include milling of the existing pavement (grinding off) and then placing an asphalt pavement overlay to 
provide a new surface.  Some areas of pavement will also be removed and/or crack and seated (broken into 
small pieces and then compacted in place) prior to the placement of the final asphalt surface.  The project 
will also include removal and replacement of concrete curb and gutter and drainage improvements where 
required.  Sidewalk ramps and pedestrian crossings will be upgraded to meet current Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.   Federal funds will be used to pay for approximately 80% of the project 
cost, with the remainder of the funding shared by the RCOC, Macomb County Department of Roads, Shelby 
Township, and the Cities of Rochester Hills and Troy.  Troy’s share of this project is from the Major Roads 
fund.  Construction is anticipated to start in September and be fully open to traffic by late November.  
Restoration and cleanup, as necessary, will take place in the spring of 2012. 
 

10. ROAD REHABILITATION – ADAMS ROAD, SOUTH BOULEVARD TO AUBURN (RCOC) 
This project is under the jurisdiction of the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC).  The work will 
include construction of turn lanes, milling of the existing pavement (grinding off) and then placement of an 
asphalt pavement overlay to provide a new surface.  The project will also include removal and replacement 
of concrete curb and gutter and drainage improvements where required.  Sidewalk ramps and pedestrian 
crossings will be upgraded to meet current Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements.   Federal 
funds will be used to pay for approximately 80% of the project cost, with the remainder of the funding 
shared by the RCOC and the Cities of Rochester Hills and Auburn Hills.  There are no City of Troy funds 
involved in this project.  Construction is anticipated to start in September and be fully open to traffic by late 
November.  Restoration and cleanup, as necessary, will take place in the spring of 2012. 

 
 
  
*NOTE: All dates or time frames are based on the best information available at the time of writing and are subject to change based on 
field conditions, actual weather conditions and/or budgetary constraints. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Projects\Project Schedule\Troy Today Update\2011\August 2011 to November 2011.docx 





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
July 18, 2011 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
 
Background 
 
Signature Ford is the low total bidder in the Macomb County cooperative bid. The six (6) Police patrol 
vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for those sold at auction. By purchasing the six 
Ford Crown Victorias it will allow us to utilize the current Police equipment from the auctioned 
vehicles without additional upgrade expense. This will also allow both the Police department and 
Fleet division time to evaluate the all new designed Police vehicles from both Chevrolet and Ford. 
The number of vehicles assigned to the Police department has been reduced by thirteen vehicles 
over the past five years. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management and the Public Works Fleet Division request authorization to purchase six (6) 2011 
Ford Crown Victorias for the Police Department from the low total bidder, Signature Ford of Owosso, 
MI, as a result of the Macomb County cooperative bid for an estimated total cost of $129,822.00.   
 
Fund Availability  
Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account. 

 
ESTIMATED 

          BUDGET           UNIT COST      TOTAL 
      
  (6) Ford Crown Victoria (solid color) $147,000.00     $21,637.00  $129,822.00 
        Police Patrol Vehicles          
 
 
 
SPL\ S:\Richnak Review/Agenda Item\07.25.11 – SR4 – Vehicle Purchase - Macomb County  
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-04b



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
July 18, 2011                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance 

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program –  

Fleet Vehicles 
 
 
Background 
 
Bill Snethkamp - Dodge is one of the awarded low bidders from the State of Michigan – MiDEAL 
Program – Contract #071B1300010. The two Police patrol vehicles being purchased are replacement 
vehicles for those sold at auction. By purchasing the two Dodge Chargers it will allow us to utilize the 
current Police equipment from the auctioned vehicles without additional upgrade expense. The 
Dodge Chargers are used daily for local, major and freeway patrols. The number of vehicles assigned 
to the Police department has been reduced by thirteen vehicles over the past five years. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management and the Public Works Fleet division request authorization to purchase two (2) 2012 
Dodge Chargers for the Police Department from Bill Snethkamp - Dodge of Lansing, MI, through the 
State of Michigan MiDEAL Program for an estimated total cost of $45,104.00.   
 
Fund Availability  
Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account. 

 
ESTIMATED 

          BUDGET           UNIT COST      TOTAL 
 
      
  (2) Dodge Chargers (solid color)  $49,000.00     $22,552.00  $45,104.00 
        Police patrol vehicles          
 
 
 
SPL\ S:\Richnak Review/Agenda Item\07.25.11 – SR4 – Vehicle Purchase – State MiDEAL  

bittnera
Text Box
J-04c



bittnera
Text Box
J-05































































































































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:              July 6, 2011              
 
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Real Estate Consultant, Greenstar & Associates, LLC 
 
Subject: Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary 
 Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard  

Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #29 & 30 – Sidwell #88-20-02-427-016 & -017 
 
 
 
Background 
 
In connection with the proposed improvements to John R Road, from Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard, we reached an agreement to acquire right-of-way from Ramarao V. and Ramadevi 
Cherukuri, Lakshmi Gontina, and Vemula Panduranga and Chandralekha P. Rao.  These parcels are 
located on the west side of John R Road, between Square Lake Road and Atkins Road in the 
southeast ¼ of Section 2. 
 
An appraisal was prepared by Andrew Reed, State Certified General Appraiser and reviewed by 
Kimberly Harper, Deputy Assessor and State Licensed Appraiser, and Larysa Figol, Limited Real 
Estate Appraiser.  Staff believes that $21,700, plus closing costs for the acquisition of the property 
described in the purchase agreement and $700 for the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit are justifiable amounts for this acquisition. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council approve the attached Purchase Agreement and 
accept the attached Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit from Ramarao V. and Ramadevi 
Cherukuri, Lakshmi Gontina, and Vemula Panduranga and Chandralekha P. Rao so that the City can 
proceed with the acquisition of this right-of-way. 
 
 
Fund Availability 
 
Eighty percent of these costs will be reimbursed from Federal funds.  Funds for the City of Troy’s 
share are available in the Major Roads Fund. 
 
 
PAP/G\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCC\Cherukuri Purchase Agreement 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-06





















BittnerA
Text Box
N-01a







ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final May 26, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held May 26, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:20 AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
ABSENT:  None. 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of March 24, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-05-005 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of March 
24, 2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-03-006 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson  

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED 
for the August 2, 2011 Election in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Precinct #4 & #9 Polling Place Relocation – From St. Elizabeth Ann 
Seton Catholic Church 280 E. Square Lake Road to First United Methodist 
Church, 6363 Livernois 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-05-007 
Motion by  
Seconded by  
 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has deemed that the current location of Precincts #4 
and #9 at St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church is no longer available to the 
City of Troy to serve the City of Troy electors assigned to that polling location; 
 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01b



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final May 26, 2011 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy has found an alternative polling location at First 
United Methodist Church – 6363 Livernois that will sufficiently serve the electors of 
the City of Troy. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy, Precincts #4 and #9 
located at St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church at 280 E. Square Lake Road 
be RELOCATED to First United Methodist Church located at 6363 Livernois 
effective with the Special Election scheduled for Tuesday, August 2, 2011. 

 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew, Dewan 
No:  None 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:24 AM. 
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC  
City Clerk 

 



BittnerA
Text Box
N-01c









ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 21, 2011 

1 
 

The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting was called to order by Chair Lambert at 7:30 p.m. on 
June 21, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Kenneth Courtney 
Thomas Strat 
Allen Kneale 
William Fisher 
David Lambert 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
  
Absent: 
Glenn Clark 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 17, 2011 Study Session and Regular Meeting 
 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Bartnik 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone approval of the May 17, 2011 meeting minutes to July 19, 
2011 to allow proposed corrections to be presented to the Board.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent:  Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 

3. HEARING OF CASES 
 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, MINAL GADA AND ASHISH MANEK, 4820 LIVERNOIS 

 
Motion to Postpone Variance Request from Minal Gada and Ashish Manek, 4820 
Livernois 

 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Fisher 

 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Zoning Board of Appeals hereby POSTPONES to the 
July 19, 2011, Regular Meeting the Variance Request from Minal Gada and Ashish 
Manek, 4820 Livernois. 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01d



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 21, 2011 

2 
 

 
Yes:  Courtney, Fisher, Kneale, Lambert, Bartnik 
No: None 
Abstain: Strat 
Absent:  Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, TOM KASZUBSKI, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NORTH 
WOODWARD COMMUNITY FOUNDATION, 3668 LIVERNOIS  

 
 Chair Lambert OPENED the Public Hearing.   
 
 No one spoke. 
 
 Chair Lambert CLOSED the Public Hearing. 

 
Motion to GRANT the variance as requested.   
 
Moved by Bartnik 
Seconded by Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Zoning Board of Appeals hereby GRANTS the 
variance for Tom Kaszubski, Executive Director, North Woodward Community 
Foundation, 3668 Livernois.   
 
Yes:  All Present (6) 
Absent:  Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, RICHARD ADAMS, 926 NORWICH DRIVE 
 
 Chair Lambert OPENED the Public Hearing.   
 
 No one spoke. 
 
 Chair Lambert CLOSED the Public Hearing. 
 

Motion to Grant variance as requested.   
 
Moved by Strat 
Seconded by Courtney  
 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING – DRAFT JUNE 21, 2011 

3 
 

RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Zoning Board of Appeals hereby GRANTS the 
variance for Richard Adams, 926 Norwich Drive.   
 
Yes:  All Present (6) 
Absent:  Clark 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 
5. COMMUNICATIONS  
 
 Mr. Evans advised the Board that at the June 28, 2011 Planning Commission 

Special/Study Session there will be a “Stormwater 101” Presentation by Kelly Sanzica, 
Director of the Wayne Count Department of the Environment.  All Board Members and 
public are invited to attend. 

 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT – No one was present to speak. 
 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS  
 
 The Board discussed revising their Rules of Procedure.  The Board has received some 

Member comments and some proposed amendments.  The Board agreed to further 
analyze this information and continue discussion at the next regular meeting. 

 
 Mr. Strat advised the Board that the Planning Commission was working on Sustainable 

Development Options.   
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      _____ 
David Lambert, Chair 
 
 
 
 
      _____ 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 28, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on June 28, 2011 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2011-06-038 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes:  All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2011-06-039 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the June 14, 2011 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

BittnerA
Text Box

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JUNE 28, 2011 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Strat gave a summary of the June 21, 2011 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
There was no DDA meeting in June. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a report on current planning and zoning matters. 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 738) – Proposed 

Holiday Inn Express Hotel & Suites, East side of Stephenson Hwy, North of 14 Mile 
(466 Stephenson Highway), Section 35, From RC (Research Center) District to OM 
(Office Mixed Use) District 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution #2011-06-040 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the RC to OM rezoning request, located on the east side of 
Stephenson Highway, north of 14 Mile (466 Stephenson Highway), within 
Section 35, being approximately 3.05 acres in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 





Public Libraries and Community 
Economic Development

AND
Public Return On Investment



Urban Libraries Council Study (2007)
Researchers found that when libraries 
provided business development data: 

• Market entry costs for small business were 
reduced

• Existing businesses were strengthened

• New enterprises were created



STUDIES  ON ECONOMIC IMPACT OF 
PUBLIC LIBRARIES

• Taxpayer Return on Investment in Florida 
Public Libraries (2004)

• Value for Money: SW Ohio’s Return on 
Investment in Public Libraries (2006)

• The Economic Impact of Libraries on South 
Carolina (2005)

• Carnegie Library of Pittsburgh Economic 
Impact Study (2006)



LIBRARY FUNDING RETURN ON 
INVESTMENT (ROI) FINDINGS

• These studies show an ROI of 2 to 6 times the 
level of public investment

• Libraries aid job creation and workforce 
development



ROI IN FLORIDA PUBLIC LIBRARIES

• Return on Investment (ROI) increased from 
$6.54 in 2004 to $8.32 in 2008.  For every tax 
dollar received, Florida public libraries 
provided $8.32 in value.

• Job Creation- A job was created for every 
$3,491 of support to public libraries  



LIBRARIES BENEFIT FROM ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
(Walzer and Gruidl Study)

• Libraries contribute to community vitality 
and growth

• Libraries help expand the community tax 
base

• Public-Private Partnerships are formed or 
strengthened

• Services are expanded to non-traditional 
users



(Benefits continued)

• Donations of money and equipment increase

• Resource sharing increases

• Libraries increase their visibility and stature  
with the business community and local 
government



URBAN LIBRARIES COUNCIL STUDY

• THE ROLE OF PUBLIC LIBRARIES HAS SHIFTED… 
TO (THAT OF) ACTIVE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AGENTS



THE SMALL BUSINESS 
ADMINISTRATION SAYS:

• THE MOST IMPORTANT SMALL BUSINESS 
RESOURCE IS…KNOWLEDGE.  LEARNING 
OPPORTUNITIES ARE THE VENTURE CAPITAL 
OF THE FUTURE.



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft June 29, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held June 29, 2011, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Deputy City Clerk Bittner called the Meeting to order at 1:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, M. Aileen Bittner – Deputy City Clerk 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan, Tonni L. Bartholomew – City Clerk 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of May 26, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-06-008 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bittner 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of May 26, 
2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bittner 
No:  None 
Absent: Bartholomew, Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – August 2, 2011 Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-06-009 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bittner 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the August 2, 2011 Election, 
as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bittner 
No:  None 
Absent: Bartholomew, Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:05 PM. 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner 
Deputy City Clerk 

 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01f



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 11, 2011  

 Page 1 of 4 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, July 11, 
2011 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Godlewski 
 
Resolution #LC2011-07-20 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Godlewski at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of July 11, 2011 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of June 13, 2011 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2011-07-21 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the June 13, 2011 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 11, 2011  

 Page 2 of 4 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. A & S Babi, Inc. requests to Transfer All Stock Interest in 2010 SDD and 

SDM licensed corporation located at 4009 Livernois, Troy, MI  48098, 
Oakland County, wherein existing stockholder, Adel H. Babi transfers 1,000 
shares of stock to new stockholder, Sana Thomas Babi   {MLCC Req. 
#607015}.  This is John’s Party Store on Livernois, just north of Wattles. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Adel Babi and Trevor Babi.   
 
Mr. Adel Babi explained to the Committee that he is retiring from the business and 
wants to transfer shares to his wife, Sana Babi.  His son, Trevor Babi, stated that 
he is active in the business.  Day-to-day business operations will not change. 
 
Resolution #LC2011-07-22 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
A & S Babi, Inc. to Transfer All Stock Interest in 2010 SDD and SDM licensed 
corporation located at 4009 Livernois, Troy, MI  48098, Oakland County, wherein 
existing stockholder, Adel H. Babi transfers 1,000 shares of stock to new 
stockholder, Sana Thomas Babi be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 
 
 
2. Hot Rock Pizza, LLC requests to Transfer Ownership of escrowed 2011 

Resort Class C License, issued under MCL 436.1531(2), (original 550 
Resort at its original location, no seating or food requirements) & SDM 
licensed business with Dance Permit, located at 35100 Twenty Three Mile, 
New Baltimore, MI  48047, Macomb County from J.V., Inc.,; transfer 
location & governmental unit to 1893 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI  48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Req. #607312}. 

 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 11, 2011  

 Page 3 of 4 

Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney Frank Palazzola 
and business partners Michele Aluia and Vincenzo Militello.   
 
Mr. Palazzola explained to the Committee that this new restaurant is requesting 
this transfer to serve beer and wine to their customers.  Alcohol will be offered only 
at special events.  TIPS/TAMS training will be immediately offered to all 
employees.  The dance permit on the license will be relinquished. 
 
Resolution #LC2011-07-23 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of  
Hot Rock Pizza, LLC to Transfer Ownership of escrowed 2011 Resort Class C 
License, issued under MCL 436.1531(2), (original 550 Resort at its original 
location, no seating or food requirements) & SDM licensed business with Dance 
Permit, located at 35100 Twenty Three Mile, New Baltimore, MI  48047, Macomb 
County from J.V., Inc.,; transfer location & governmental unit to 1893 E. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI  48083, Oakland County be APPROVED under the condition that 
the dance permit be removed from the license. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Godlewski 
 
 
 
Officer Feld advised the Committee on the following: 
 
Gaucho II, LLC 
This is a Brazilian steakhouse restaurant planned for the former Designer Shoe 
Warehouse located on Rochester Road.  Uncertain if this item will be ready for an 
August meeting. 
 
Kamel Management, Inc. 
The Maple Market has closed and the former owner had placed the license in 
escrow.  This is the new owner.  Uncertain if this item will be ready for an August 
meeting. 
 
Clawson-Troy Elks Lodge, No. 2169  
This request was heard and approved by City Council.  The Elks Lodge was very 
appreciative that we resolved this issue so quickly. 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JULY 11, 2011  

 Page 4 of 4 

Assistant City Attorney Lancaster advised the Committee on the following: 
 
Sanctuary Lakes Golf Course - Catering Vendor 
There is a delay at the State level in transferring the liquor license from Kosch 
Catering to Sanctuary Lake Golf Management, LLC.   
 
Troy Community Center - Catering Vendor 
Alpha-Doni, Inc. d/b/a Encore Catering was approved as the new caterer by City 
Council.  They will be applying for a Class C quota license which will remain with 
the City at termination of the agreement. 
 
Camp Ticonderoga 
A new lease was signed.  Renovations will be made by the owners of Camp 
Ticonderoga under the new agreement. 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft July 13, 2011 
 

 

 1 

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, June 8, 2011, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 
 
Trustees Present:   Mark Calice  

William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
Steve Pallotta 
Mary Kerwin  

     Mitchell Lenczewski 
John Szerlag  
 

Trustee Absent:   Thomas J. Gordon, II 
 
Also Present:   Justin Breyer 

Monica Irelan 
Thomas Darling, CPA 

 
Minutes             
Resolution # ER – 2011-7-26 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Lenczewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Revised Minutes of the June 8, 2011 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas: All-5  
Absent: Gordon  
 
Retirement Request           
Resolution # ER – 2011-7-27 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Lenczewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the following retirement requests be approved: 
 

Name Marianne Leslie Thomas Lawrence Christopher Swift Mark Livingston 
Pension Program DB DB  DB DB 
Retirement Date 7-14-11 7-16-11 7-20-11 7-21-11 
Department Assessing Public Works Police Police 
Service Time 15 years 6 months 25 years 2 months 23 years 2 months 13 years 11 months 

 
Name Jonathon B. King Dane W Lawicki Barbara Losey Patrick Fitzpatrick 
Pension Program DC DC – DB DB DB 
Retirement Date 7-30-11 8-6-11 8-6-11 7-16-11 
Department Public Works Engineering Treasurer Engineering 
Service Time 34 years 7 months 29 years 11 months 15 years 3 months 17 years 8 months 

 

bittnera
Text Box
N-01h



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft July 13, 2011 
 

 

 2 

Name Paul A. Harrington Nicolette Kaptur Jerry Fairbrother John Zawojskyj 
Pension Program DB DB DB DC 
Retirement Date 8-12-11 7-23-11 8-12-11 8-12-11 
Department Public Works Police Public Works Public Works 
Service Time 25 years 9 months 25 years 6 months 25 years 4 months 20 years 10 months 

 
 
 
Yeas: All-5  
Absent: Gordon  
 
Investments            
Resolution # ER – 2011-7-28 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the board buy and sell the following: 
  
 Sell:  5,000 shares of Nextera Energy  
 Buy: 5,000 shares of SodaStream International 
 
Yeas: All-5  
Absent: Gordon  
 
 
Other Business – Chapter 10 Revision        
Resolution # ER – 2011-7-29 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Pallotta 
 
Resolved, that the City of Troy Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees 
recommends a revision of Troy City Ordinance Chapter 10 Section 3.6 (C ), as follows: 
 
3.6 The Board of Trustees is vested with the power and authority to administer, manage 
and operate the retirement system, and to construe and make effective the provisions of 
this Chapter.  The Board shall consist of eight trustees as follows: 
 
(C )The Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration City Manager or his/ her 
designee shall be the Administrative Officer and serve as secretary of the Retirement 
System and he he/she shall be the custodian of its money and investments. 
 
Be is further Resolved, that this resolution be forwarded to the Troy City Council for its 
consideration of the ordinance amendment. 
 
Yeas: All-5  
Absent: Gordon  
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft July 13, 2011 
 

 

 3 

Other Business – ICMA-RC Resolution        
Resolution # ER – 2011-7-30 
Moved by Lenczewski 
Seconded by Szerlag 
 
Resolved, that Lisa Burnham is the Plan Coordinator for the ICMA-RC retirement system. 
 
Yeas: All-5  
Absent: Gordon  
 
Public Comment            
Councilman Howrylak was present. No comment. 
 
 
The next meeting is August 10, 2011 at 12:00 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room C, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:51 p.m.  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 Mark Calice, Chairman 
 
 
__________________________________ 
_____________, Secretary 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2011\7.13.11 – Minutes_Draft  



bittnera
Text Box
N-02a











bittnera
Text Box
N-03a





 
July 19, 2011 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Transit Center Status Report 
 
Since Birmingham’s withdrawal from the Transit Center last April we have been working with the Federal Rail 
Administration (FRA) on revising the site plan and Environmental Assessment (EA) to encompass only the 
improvements on the Troy side.  The revised site plan relocates the train platform from Birmingham to the Troy 
side and replaces the tunnel under the tracks with steps and an ADA compliant ramp to the platform from the 
transit center building.  The layout of the balance of the site including the building location, parking, drop off 
and bus stop configurations were unchanged.  All improvements on the Birmingham side were eliminated. 
 
Relocation of the platform to the Troy side requires that we negotiate a commitment from Canadian National 
(CN) railroad to allow the necessary track improvements to switch the AMTRAK train from the west track to the 
east track.  This commitment has been secured, thus allowing the FRA to proceed with their review of the 
revised EA.  
 
FRA is currently finalizing their review of the EA and we expect their approval shortly.  Once approved, a draft 
funding agreement, similar to those council has seen for federally funded road projects such as Rochester 
Road, will be provided by MDOT for city review.  The funding agreement will set forth the estimated cost of the 
Transit Center and other terms of the federal grant.  Grant funding continues to be sufficient to cover the 
estimated cost of the Transit Center, from final design through construction and completion of all 
improvements.  
 
Concurrent with city review and approval of the grant funding agreement, Request for Proposal documents will 
be finalized and made ready for solicitation of proposals for Design Engineers to prepare final plans and 
specifications and a Construction Manager at Risk who will be responsible for the construction of the Transit 
Center. 
 
In accordance with the council’s site plan approval resolution, a one day design workshop with the Troy 
Planning Commission will be conducted to discuss and incorporate design enhancements into the plans for 
improved aesthetics and functionality of the project after the EA has been approved and funding agreements 
executed.  
 
Finally, as previously communicated to Council by City Attorney Lori Bluhm (memo attached), Grand Sakwa’s 
request for reversion of the transit center property was denied by Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Rae Lee 
Chabot.  Grand Sakwa has appealed this decision. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or need any additional information. 
 
 
   
 
G:\Transit Center\Status Reports\TransitCenterStatus7_19_11.doc  

CCOOUUNNCCIILL    RREEPPOORRTT  
 

bittnera
Text Box
N-05








	20110725 Agenda Packet.pdf
	COVER MEMO
	VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	Proposed Resolution to Reconvene in Closed Session as Allowed by Resolution #2011-07-167 and MCL15.268(a) – City Manager Evaluation

	INVOCATION: Pastor Simion Timbuc – Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE::
	A. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 No Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations

	B. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	C. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for US Farathane Corporation – 754 W. Maple
	E-2 Public Hearing for the Transfer of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation from Madison Heights to 754 W. Maple
	E-3 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for US Farathane Corporation at 754 W. Maple

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: Mayoral Appointments – Local Development Finance Authority

	Resolution to RECONSIDER the Mayoral Appointments to the Local Development Finance Authority
	Suggested Resolution
	Yes:
	No:
	Suggested Resolution
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
	I-3 Request for Closed Session: None Requested
	I-4 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – City of Madison Heights
	I-5 Ratification of 2011-2013 Contract and Approval of Early Retirement Incentive Program – Troy Communications Supervisors Association (TCSA)
	I-6 Amendment of Consent Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan Approval (File Number SP 186 A) – Proposed Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), Section 10, Currently Zoned Neighborhood No...
	I-7 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 10 – Employees Retirement System of the Code of the City of Troy

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Concrete Pavement Repair Program
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program – Fleet Vehicles

	J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Nancy Papet, Board of Directors, Troy Nature Society
	J-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #29 & 30 – Sidwell #88-20-02-427-016 & -017

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  Council Referrals: No Council Referrals Submitted

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-May 9, 2011
	b) Election Commission-Final-May 26, 2011
	c) Liquor Advisory Committee-Final-June 13, 2011
	d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft-June 21, 2011
	e) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-June 28, 2011
	f) Election Commission-Draft-June 29, 2011
	g) Liquor Advisory Committee-Draft-July 11, 2011
	h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Draft-July 13, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) Police Department – 2011 Mid-Year Calls for Police Service Report

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation from Kelly Services to Mayor Schilling Regarding the Troy Police Department

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	N-5  Transit Center Status Report

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  No Study Items Presented

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  No Closed Session

	Q. ADJOURNMENT
	Monday, August 8, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, August 22, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, August 29, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, September 12, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, September 26, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, October 3, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, October 17, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, November 21, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting
	Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting


	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 715000
	2: 715000

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor  MMAO (4) #6345

	Reset: 


